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OPP 
BETSY ALLEN, ESQ. 

Electronically Filed 
02/20/2017 10:48:00 AM 
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~j.~ 
CLERK OF THE COURT 

2 Nevada State Bar #006878 
LAW OFFICE OF BETSY ALLEN 

3 P.O.Box 46991 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89114 

4 (702) 386-9700 
Fax: (702) 386-4723 

5 betsyallenesq@yahoo.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

RICHARD KILGORE, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

ELENI KILGORE, 

DISTRICT COURT , FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

) 
) 
) 
} CASE NO.: D-12-459171-D 
} 
) DEPT. NO.: I 
} 

03/28/17 ) 
} 

Defendant. ) lO:OOam 

PLAINTIFF'S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO AMEND OR MAKE 
16 ADDITIONAL FINDINGS OF FACT, TO ALTER OR AMEND JUDGMENT AND FOR 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

JA-001451 

ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS AND COUNTERMOTION FOR SANCTIONS 

Plaintiff, Richard Kilgore, by and through his counsel, Betsy Allen, Esq, hereby 

submits this Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Amend or Make Additional Findings of 

Fact, to Alter or Amend Judgment and for Attorney's Fees and Costs. 

This Opposition is made and based upon the papers and pleadings on file 

herein, the attached Points and Authorities submitted herewith and any argument the 

Court may entertain at the h, earing of the above matter. 

DATED the 16th day of February, 2017. 

/s/ Betsy Allen 
BETSY ALLEN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 6878 
P.O. Box 46991 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 386-9700 
Attorney for Plaintiff 



STATEMENT OF FACTS 

2 Over the course of two and a half days, this Court heard testimony and reviewed 

3 exhibits related to the post-divorce motions filed the above parties. Numerous issues 

4 were raised both in pre-trial motions and memorandums filed prior to the trial. 

5 On or about January 19, 2017, counsel for Defendant filed a Motion titled 

6 "Defendant's Motion to Amend or Make Additional Findings of Fact, to Alter or Amend 

7 Judgment and for Attorney's Fees and Costs." The final Order has not be filed in this 

8 case. 

9 POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

10 In Nevada, civil cases are controlled by the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, or 

11 NRCP. The Court and the parties are limited in actions that can be taken by the 

12 aforementioned rules. The Rules were put into place to prevent an attorney from filing 

13 ridiculous and frivolous motions which waste time, money and judicial resources. 

14 Additionally, it sets forth reasonable grounds for granting post-judgment relief to an 

15 aggrieved party, other than "I didn't get what I wanted and want a do-over." 

16 First and foremost, a motion for a new trial must be filed once a final order has 

17 been entered and the notice fo entry has been made. N RCP 59(b) states that "a 

18 motion for a new trial shall be filed no later than 10 days after service of written notice 

19 of the entry of the judgment." The final order and notice of entry of order have not been 

20 filed in the instant case. Thus, Defendant's motion is irrelevant at this point and should 

21 be denied. There is no order, thus there is nothing to request a Whotion (whine+ 

22 motion) for a New Trial on. 

23 Secondly, and if the final order has been filed, an aggrieved party can file for a 

24 new trial based upon some specific grounds. NRCP Rule 59 sets for the grounds for 

25 which this Court may grant a new trial. Under subsection (a) it states: 

26 

27 

28 

(a) Grounds. A new trial may be granted to all or any of the 
parties and on all or part of the issues for any of the following 
causes or grounds materially affecting the substantial rights of 
an aggrieved party: (1) Irregularity in the proceedings of the 
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10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

court, jury, master, or adverse party, or any order of the court, 
or master, or abuse of discretion by which either party was 
prevented from having a fair trial; (2) Misconduct of the jury or 
prevailing party; (3) Accident or surprise which ordinary 
prudence could not have guarded against; (4} Newly 
discovered evidence material for the party making the motion 
which the party could not, with reasonable diligence, have 
discovered and produced at the trial; (5) Manifest disregard by 
the jury of the instructions of the court; (6) Excessive damages 
appearing to have been given under the influence of passion or 
prejudice; or, (7} Error in law occurring at the trial and objected 
to by the party making the motion. On a motion for a new trial 
in an action tried without a jury, the court may open the 
judgment if one has been entered, take additional testimony, 
amend findings of fact and conclusions of law or make new 
findings and conclusions, and direct the entry of a new 
judgment. 

The Defendant, in the instant case, filed a motion to make new findings or to 

alter or amend the judgment. The "argument" from the Defendant is nothing based 

upon any of the above reasons but based upon a claim that counsel, and his client, 

were not put on notice that child support was at issue and that the "tern porary" orders 

were (1 )some not temporary and (1 )some were but nonetheless, the Court should order 

child support in her favor when it suits her. 

17 Not only has the Defendant filed a Motion for a New Trial prior to the time she is 

18 ALLOWED to file it, she has filed it contrary to both documentation, testimony at trial 

19 and basic logic. In Plaintiff's pre-trial memorandum, he plainly(and in recognizable 

20 English) puts that child support is at issue. (See attached Exhibit "1' page 2, line 8). 

21 Additionally, counsel for Plaintiff should read Exhibit 1, page 4, lines 3-13, which sets 

22 forth the child support issue IN DETAIL and again, in plain English. Thus, putting 

23 everyone on notice. Finally, in the Order dated October 13, 2016, signed by Mr. Page, 

24 (see Exhibit "2") the child support is listed as temporary, thus not permanent, thus still 

25 up for decision by the Court. 

26 Secondly, at trial, counsel for Plaintiff spent an inordinate amount of time 

27 discussing Mr. Kilgore's job loss, unemployment, prospects at getting gainful 

28 

- 3 -
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employment and then his rehiring at the City of Las Vegas. There is no worldly reason 

2 this subject would have been covered, ad nauseum, if it was not relevant. Further, 

3 Defendant never objected to the line of questioning. So, either counsel for Defendant 

4 knew there was a pending issue with child support or just thoroughly enjoyed the 

5 discussion regarding Mr. Kilgore's employment plight. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Finally, basic logic dictates that this issue would be covered at trial. Mr. Kilgore 

LOST his job. He was unable to pay child support and asked that his child support be 

adjusted accordingly. As a result, counsel for Eleni opted to file countless 

countermotions and drag out these proceedings for more than a year. However, the 

issue of child support was NEVER addressed in a final order. It was, in fact, the biggest 

issue at the trial. 

The bottom line is that Defendant did not like the outcome. After the Court 

14 
announced its initial decision on October 31, 2016, counsel for Eleni began complaining 

15 
about the issue of child support. However, when you litigate issues, THE COURT CAN 

AND WILL RULE AGAINST YOU. It is a hazard you undertake when you go before a 
16 

17 
Court to settle a dispute. 

18 Finally, there is ZERO basis to award attorney's fees. Under, NRS 18.010, the 

19 Court can only award attorney's fees if the opposition was filed without a reasonable 

20 basis or with the intent to harass. It is neither. It is a continued argument with counsel 

21 about this Court's ruling. It was clear from all of the complaining, immediately after this 

22 Court issued its rulings, that Defendant and her counsel were not happy. However, 

23 there is NO basis in law, fact or logic to file the Motion that was filed. 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

COUNTER-MOTION FOR SANCTIONS 

Pursuant to EDCR 7.60(1): 

The Court may, after notice and an opportunity to be heard, 
impose upon an attorney or a party any and all sanctions which 
may, under the facts of the case, be reasonable, including the 
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14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

imposition of fines, costs or attorney's fees when an attorney or a 
party without just cause .... presents to the Court a motion or an 
opposition to a motion which is obviously frivolous, unnecessary or 
unwarranted. 

The motion filed with the Court, requesting another chance, and citing NOTHING 

which would present this Court with a reason to re-open this case is literally the definition 

of frivolous, unnecessary and unwarranted. Defendant's "buyers remorse" on having the 

Court try this case is also not a reason. And the only way to stop this type of motion is 

to sanction the attorney who filed it. 

Thus, Plaintiff requests $2,500.00 in sanctions in the form of Attorney's fees. 

CONCLUSION 

Defendant's Motion should be denied in its entirety. There is no basis in law, fact 

or any other rational basis for which it should be entertained. 

DATED the_ 16th_ day of February, 2017. 

/s/ Betsy Allen 
BETSY ALLEN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 6878 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing Opposition 

21 
to Fred Page, Esq., via email to: 

22 
fpage@pagelawoffices.com 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Betsy Allen, Esq. 
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PMEM 
1 RICHARD KILGORE 

1810 THOROUGHBRED RD 
2 HENDERSON, NV 89002 

RACEDAD336@YAHOO.COM 
3 702-325-3518 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

NAME, 

RICHARD KILGORE, 

v. 

NAME, 

ELENI KILGORE. 

DISTRICT COURT 
FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CASE NO.: D-12-459171-D 
DEPT NO.: I 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~-> 

13 PRE-TRIAL MEMORANDUM 

14 Plaintiff, RICHARD KILGORE, representing in proper person, hereby submits hi 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

amended pre-trial memorandum for the evidentiary hearing set for July 25, 2016, 

Department I. 

I. 

STATEMENT OF ESSENTIAL FACTS 

A. Names and Ages of the Parties: 

1. RICHARD KILGORE 54 

2. ELENI KILGORE 46 

The parties divorced on March 13, 2013. There are 3 children born the issue of 

this marriage, to wit; Richard Jr. and Nicholas, both 15 years of age, and 

Alexandra, 20 years of age. 

JA:.001457 
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18 

19 
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21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

a. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

II. 

RESOLVED ISSUES 

There are no resolved issues 

Ill. 

UNRESOLVED ISSUES 

Permanent Order for Physical Custody; 

Child Support; 

Child Support Arrears; 

PERS retirement pay; 

Vacation/Sick Time benefits; 

f. Attorney's Fees and Costs. 

IV. 

LEGAL AND PHYSICAL CUSTODY 

In making the determination of custody, the applicable Nevada Revised Statute 

requires the Court to solely consider the best interest of the child(ren) into consideration 

In entering orders with regard to custody and support of minor children, the Court' 

paramount consideration under Nevada law is the welfare of the children. Culbertson v. 

Culbertson, 91 Nev. 230, 533 P.2d 768 (1975). The guiding principle in the court' 

exercise of its discretion in cases affecting the rights and welfare of the children, are th 

best interests and the welfare of the children whose rights are involved. Fenkell v. Fenkell 

86 Nev. 397, 469 P.2d 701 (1970). 

NRS 125.480(4) sets forth factors affecting the best interests of children. As NR 

125.510 and 125.480 have been recently repealed as of October 1, 2015 by AB 236, 

2 



1 

2 

3 
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8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

pursuant to NRS 125C, the provisions are similar in that the sole consideration for thi 

Court is the best interests of the child in an action for determining physical custody of 

child. Further, in determining the best interests of the child, the factors listed in NR 

125.480 (4) set forth below, remain the same - almost identical to newly enacte 

legislation: 

4. In determining the best interest of the child, the court shall consider, among 
other things: 
(a) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capacity to form 
an intelligent preference as to his custody. 
(b) Any nomination by a parent or a guardian for the child. 
(c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent associations 
and a continuing relationship with the noncustodial parent. 
(d) The level of conflict between the parents. 
(e) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs of the child. 
(f) The mental and physical health of the parents. 
(g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. 
(h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. 
(i) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any sibling. 
(j) Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling of the child. 
(k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking custody has engaged in 
an act of domestic violence against the child, a parent of the child or any other 
person residing with the child. 
(I) -Whether either parent or any other person seeking custody has committed 
any act of abduction against the child or any other child. 

An analysis under the factors, as detailed herein, demonstrate that granting Dad' 

request for Joint Legal and Physical Custody of Nicholas is in his best interest. This cou 

must take into consideration the hostile aggressive parenting, brainwashing, and parenta 

alienation perpetuated by Eleni towards the children. 

II 

II 

3 
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14 

15 

16 

v. 
CHILD SUPPORT & CHILD SUPPORT ARREARS 

Considering a joint physical custody determination, child support should be 

calculated pursuant to Wright v. Osborn, NRS 1258.070 and NRS 1258.080. However, 

at the current time Mom is living with a boyfriend that contributes a significant portion of 

income and support to the household. Moreover, the unresolved PERS benefits have not 

yet been factored into the child support calculation. If Eleni is entitled to PERS benefits 

on behalf of Richard, then that is income for Eleni and should be considered as such for 

her, reducing the income and obligation of support for Richard. Furthermore, the 

calculation of child support arrears has not fairly taken into consideration the employment 

issues that affected Richard's income for well over a year. 

VI. 

PERS RETIREMENT PAY 

Under the Nevada Supreme Court, the Hensen v. Hensen 2014 ruling is very clea 

17 in that the nonemployee spouse (Eleni), is not entitled to any PERS Pension benefits unti 

18 

19 
she very clearly files a motion with the District Court requesting immediate payment of thos 

benefits. She still has not filed that motion, and their supplemental to the status chec 
20 

21 hearing is not and does not meet the Supreme Court's intent of filing a motion to reques 

22 the immediate payment of the benefits. It also clearly explains that she is not entitled to an 

23 benefits prior to the date of her filing the proper motion, and therefore NOT entitled to an 

24 
arrears of benefits. 

25 

26 
The Nevada PERS manual on domestic relations, in BOLD lettering, states tha 

27 
they will NOT pay the alternate payee (former spouse), while the employee is still working 

4 
28 



1 
This is because I am not actually in receipt of this income, and have no ability to pay it, 

2 along with child support, and still be expected to live and care for myself or my family. 

3 Lastly, on the subject of paying Eleni my PERS benefits while still employed, I refe 

4 to a publication by Mr. Willick himself in that he clearly noted that "NRS 125.155, whic 

5 
became effective on July 5, 1995, carves out PERS retirements exclusively as permissive/ 

6 
immune from division until actual retirement of the participant spouse, if the trial court s 

7 

8 orders. Yet, six weeks after that effective date, the Nevada Supreme Court in Sertic, supra, 

g ordered that all spousal shares of retirement benefits are to be distributed to the spouse 

10 upon first eligibility for retirement. This would appear to present both an equa 

11 
protection issue, and a question as to which mandate takes priority." And also note 

12 

13 
that "As a practical matter, it is not possible to both distribute a spousal share of 

14 
retirement upon eligibility despite the wage-earner's continued employment, and t 

15 base the spousal share paid on the amount that the wage-earner ultimately receives 

16 This leaves the trial courts with no practical means of accomplishing thes 

17 conflicting directives except to make the best projection possible at the time o 
18 

19 
divorce, and have the parties return to court when the employee eventually retires t 

adjust the distributable spousal share." 
20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

VII. 

VACATION AND SICK TIME 

This argument should not be considered by the court. First and foremost, th 

receipt of my vacation and sick time was nearly 18 months AFTER the divorce wa 

27 
finalized. They were not an asset at time of divorce, nor were they omitted under any frau 

s 
28 



1 
or mistake. Eleni is an employee in the same pay and retirement system, and is intimate! 

2 familiar with how vacation and sick time is accrued and paid. She had every opportunity t 

3 address this during the nearly two year long battle for divorce if it was a concern. The 

4 should have to prove to this court that fraud or a mistake was made prior to this court eve 

5 
entertaining the idea that it was an asset or that it was omitted. Furthermore, had I remaine 

6 

7 
employed during this time and taken a day off to go to the doctor or take a vacation, m 

8 accrued vacation and sick time would pay me as a regular day's salary, and Eleni woul 

g not be any more entitled to that than has already been calculated by this court for th 

10 spousal and child support already. These accrued benefits were not an asset until I cashe 

11 
them out 18 month after the divorce was final, and therefore was not an asset and was no 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

omitted during the divorce proceedings. 

VIII. 

ATTORNEY'S FEES 

Attorney's fees should be denied in their entirety, because Eleni is not the prevailing 

party, and there has been no proper show cause to determine contempt. 

NRS 18.010 Award of Attorney's fees. 

1. The compensation of an attorney and counselor for his or her services is 
governed by agreement, express or implied, which is not restrained by law. 
2. In addition to the cases where an allowance is authorized by specific 
statute, the court may make an allowance of attorney's fees to a prevailing 
party: 
(a) When the prevailing party has not recovered more than $20,000; or 
(b) Without regard to the recovery sought, when the court finds that the 
claim, counterclaim, cross-claim or third-party complaint or defense of the 
opposing party was brought or maintained without reasonable ground or to 
harass the prevailing party. The court shall liberally construe the provisions 
of this paragraph in favor of awarding attorney's fees in all appropriate 
situations. It is the intent of the Legislature that the court award attorney's 
fees pursuant to this paragraph and impose sanctions pursuant to Rule 11 
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of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure in all appropriate situations to punish 
for and deter frivolous or vexatious claims and defenses because such 
claims and defenses overburden limited judicial resources, hinderthe timely 
resolution of meritorious claims and increase the costs of engaging 
business and providing professional services to the public. 
3. In awarding attorney's fees, the court may pronounce its decision on the 
fees at the conclusion of the trial or special proceeding without written 
motion and with or without presentation of additional evidence. 
4. Subsections 2 and 3 do not apply to any action arising out of a written 
instrument or agreement which entitles the prevailing party to an award of 
reasonable attorney's fees. 

Regarding Eleni's request for attorney's fees. Eleni has provided no mandate 

legal basis for her request for attorney's fees. As such, it is within this Court's discretio 

whether to make an award of attorney's fees at all in this matter pursuant to NRS 126.171 

Furthermore, Eleni has not yet been deemed the prevailing party, and pursuant to NR 

18.010 and EDCR 7.60 this court must make a finding that Richard has brought o 

maintained this suit upon baseless and frivolous grounds to award her fees under thos 

statutes. She is only entitled to attorney's fees if she can demonstrate I am harassing b 

defending the motion, based on Rivero v. Rivero. 

VIII. 

LIST OF WITNESSES 

1. Pat Skorkowski - Superintendent Clark County School District/Or 
Representative of CCSD Benefits and Payroll 

2. Tina M. Leiss- Executive Officer of Nevada PERS/Or Representative of Publi 
Employees' Retirement System on Nevada 

3. Deborah Rowe 
4. Timothy l. Rowe 
5. Panorea Kinard 
6. Dr. John Lepore/Or Designated Representative of Kid Fixer Pediatric 
7. Alexandra Kilgore 
8. Camille Kilgore 
9. Morgan Davis - City of Las Vegas Dep City Attorney Civil Division 
10. Dr. Karin Huffer 
11. Thomas Mathews - Director, HQ Collection, IRS, Western Area 

7 
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12. Donna Gosnell, M.S., MFT 
13. Sonya Hellwinkel - Director, NV PERS 

IX. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

Financial Disclosure Form from Plaintiff 
Financial Disclosure form from Defendant 
NV PERS Manual 
Excerpt from, "An Introduction to Pensions in Nevada Divorce Law", Willick Law 
Group, October 15, 2004. 

x. 

UNUSUAL LEGAL OR FACTUAL ISSUES PRESENTED 

None. 

XII. 

LENGTH OF TRIAL 

One half day which is currently set for July 25, 2016 at 1 :30 p.m. 

DATED this 22 day of June, 2016. 
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Respectfully Submitted, 

RIC~~E 
1810 THOROUGHBRED RD 
HENDERSON, NV 89002 
RACEDAD336@YAHOO.COM 
702-325-3518 
PLAINTIFF 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that on this 22nd day of June, 2016, I caused th 

foregoing document entitled PRE-TRIAL MEMORANDUM to be served as follows: 

[ X] 

[ x] 

[ ] 

[ ] 

pursuant to EDCR 8.05(a), EDCR 8.05(f), NRCP 5(b)(2)(D) an 
Administrative Order 14-2 captioned Aln the Administrative Matter o 
Mandatory Electronic Service in the Eighth Judicial District Court,@ b 
mandatory electronic service through the Eighth Judicial District Court 
electronic filing system; 

by placing same to be deposited for mailing in the United States Mail, in 
sealed envelope upon which first class postage was prepaid in Las Vegas, 
Nevada; 

pursuant to EDCR 7.26, to be sent via facsimile, by duly executed consen 
for service by electronic means; 

by hand-delivery with signed Receipt of Copy. 

To the attorney(s) listed below at the address, email address, and/or facsimile numbe 

indicated below: 

FRED PAGE ESQ 
6145 Spring Mountain Rd, Suite 201 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
702-469-3278 
jpage@pagelawoffices.com 

RIC~RE 
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' 

ORDR 
BETSY ALLEN, ESQ. 

2 Nevada State Bar #006878 
LAW OFFICE OF BETSY ALLEN 

3 P.O.Box46991 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89114 

4 (702) 386-9700 
Fax: (702) 386-4723 

5 betsyallenesq@yahoo.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

6 

7 

8 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

9 

10 

· 11 

RICHARD KILGORE, 

Plaintiff, 

12 vs. 

CASE NO.: D-12-459171-0 

DEPT. NO.: I 

13 aENI KILGORE, 

14 Defendant 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

ORDER 

THIS MATTER having come before the Court on August 2, 2016 with the Plaintiff 

RICHARD KILGORE present, Plaintiff in Proper Person, and the Defendant, ELENI 

KILGORE, not present, represented by Fred Page, Esq. and the Court having read all 

the papers and pleading orders the following: 
20 

21 

22 

23 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Plaintiffs Objection to Master's report and 

Recommendation is DENIED; 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the District Attorney's office shall not impose 

any sanctions, contempt, or set any future hearing dates pending trial decision. 
24 

Further, the 25 day sanction is STAYED; 
25 

26 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Child Support Clerk shall amend the court 

minutes from June 14, 2016 hearing to reflect Plaintiffs temporary child support shall 
27 

28 
be set at $1,500.00 per month, with $692.13 being withheld from Plaintiffs paycheck 

every two weeks; 



. 

' 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendant's countermotion to the 

2 Objection, being filed untimely, Court finds the Objection was filed timely; 

3 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that per stipulation, Sonya Hellwinkle, a PERS 

4 representative, may appear by video conference for the Evidentiary Hearing on August 

5 15, 2016; 

6 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant's request for Attorney's fees and costs 

7 isDENIED; 

8 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Evidentiary Hearing set for August 15, 2016 
------,,rlhn..-....,..,---. -- -· -­

' 
DATED the _ day of OCT 13 201~ 2016. 

D(~~~J't-.4--.-.•• 
10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 BY: 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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MOFI 
DISTRICT COURT 
FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

~}, h\ ~12\e Case No. U-\~ -~51 I/ j -j) 
Plaintiff/Petitioner ____. 

Dept. _L 

MOTION/OPPOSITION 
Defendant/Respondent FEE INFORMATION SHEET 

Notice: Motions and Oppositions filed after entry of a final order issued pursuant to NRS 125, l 25B or l 25C are 
subject to the reopen filing fee of $25, unless specifically excluded by NRS 19.0312. Additionally, Motions and 
Oppositions filed in cases initiated by joint petition may be subject to an additional filing fee of$129 or $57 in 
accordance with Senate Bill 388 ofthe 2015 Legislative Session. 

Ste I. Select either the $25 or $0 filin fee in the box below. 

0 $25 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this fonn is subject to the $25 reopen fee. 

(.~:- The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is not subject to the $25 reopen 
fee because: 

D The Motion/Opposition is being filed before a Divorce/Custody Decree has been 
entered. 
he Motion/Opposition is being filed solely to adjust the amount of child support 

f / established in a final order. 
~he Motion/Opposition is for reconsideration or for a new trial, and is being filed 

within l 0 days after a final judgment or decree was entered. The final order was 
entered on 

~~~~~~~~ 

D Other Excluded Motion (must specify) 

Ste 2. Select the $0, $129 or $57 filin fee in the box below. 

D $0 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this fonn is not subject to the $129 or the 
$57 fee because: 

-OR-

D The Motion/Opposition is being filed in a case that was not initiated by joint petition. 
0 The party filing the Motion/Opposition previously paid a fee of $129 or $57. 

O $129 The Motion being filed with this form is subject to the $129 fee because it is a motion 
to modify, adjust or enforce a final order. 

-OR-

O $57 The Motion/Opposition being filing with this fonn is subject to the $57 fee because it is 
an opposition to a motion to modify, adjust or enforce a final order, or it is a motion 
and the o osin art has alread aid a fee of $129. 

Ste 
The total filing fee for the motion/opposition I am filing with this form is: 
0$0 0$25 0$57 0$82 0$129 0$154 



RPLY 

Electronically Filed 
03/27/2017 03:13:40 PM 

.. 
~j.~ 

FRED PAGE, ESQ. 
2 Nevada Bar: 6080 

CLERK OF THE COURT 

3 PAGE LAW OFFICE 
6145 Spring Mountain Road, Suite 20 I 

4 Las Vegas, Nevada 89146 
5 Phone: (702) 469-3278 

Facsimile: (702) 628-9884 
6 

E-mail: fpage@pagelawoffices.com 
7 Attorney for Defendant 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

DISTRICT COURT, FAMILY DIVISION 
CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

RICHARD KILGORE, 

Plaintiff, CASE NO.: D-12-459171-D 
DEPT. NO.: I 

VS. 

Hearing Date: 3/28/2017 
1 s ELENI KILGORE, 

16 

'7 

IK 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Hearing Time: 10:00 a.m. 
Defendant. 

DEFENDANT'S REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO AMEND OR 
MAKE ADDITIONAL FINDINGS OF FACT, TO ALTER OR AMEND 

JUDGMENT 
AND 

FOR ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS 
AND 

OPPOSITION TO COUNTERMOTION FOR SANCTIONS 

COMES NOW, Defendant, ELENI KILGORE, by and through her counse 

21 Fred Page, Esq. and hereby files her Reply to Plaintiffs Opposition to her Motio 

28 
to Amend or Make Additional Findings of Fact, to Alter or Amend Judgment, an 

I of 7 
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! 
"" ,,...., I 

' · ~ - · · r>1 · · f" 1~) r "'1 I \"I)l-) KI r c··(·>1) l'" s I for .Attorney s Fees and hles her Opposition w - amti 1, , t.r- !- " - -· .1 '\c ... •] 

\ 
Countennotion l()r Sanctions. This Reply and Opposition is based upon the paper~ 

I 
and pleadings on lift\ the attached Points and Authorities and any oral argunwn~ 

that the Court may wish to entertain. 

DATED this 27th dav of \-fan:h 2017 
,; 

I' l PAUL Li\ W OFFICE 

.
!:. 

'l 

- 1 i.: A· 

I 
10 ! 

~,-~· 1--·~· 

/' ,,.,/ ... -
-----··'-9":......_ ----·-·· -.-c: __ ..... --:71 ~ ......... 

-j:·::·i{f'"j"-)j1)\(:· F. E-SQ ·---··--······-·--·-···-·-------
JI l 

l ~ I 
=:· I 

. ... . . .. t .... ,. ... ·~ '* 

Nevada Bar No. 6080 
6145 Spring !\fountain, Suite 201 
Las V cgas, Nevada 89146 

i ~ j 

15 I 
(702) 469-3278 
Attorney for Defendant 

POINTS AND AUTHORl'IES 
i6 I 

I. i 

p ! REPLY I 
I~ l I 

j Richard's Opposition is as etnotional and unhinged as the undersigned aJ 
l ;! ! I 

' i 
2o I seen in sonic tin1c. The reality is that Richard is trying t.o have it both vvays. ff tht.j 

. i 
21 I Motion was not filed. then Richard \Vould he claimirrn. that the Minute Order ·was a! 

1. -· ._. 1· 

22 

I final Order and that any request fi:w relief \Vas time barred. If the J\.'lotion is filed aJ 
2:1 . ! I 
:1 j,. . I' l 1 .-. . I R' h I . . I ' pit is, out o an a 1um anct.' 01 cautwn, t K'n 1c ~ire engages 111 ~111 cmotJona ran~ 

; ' [ ~ i -· ll claiming that the iV1otion is prenrntun .. >. The reality is that a rvfinute Order is an) 
2<, I! l 
'' I' Order and as sud1, Eleni's rights need to be prolected regardless of what Ridianj 

~~ , t · I i t. 1111ks. i 

j I I 
!! i 
\! 2 of 7 ! 
i1 l 
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10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Richard could have made his arguments claiming that the Minute Order wa 

not yet a final Order is a calm and reasoned manner. Richard could have reache 

out and stipulated that the Motion, in his opinion, was premature and that all right 

were preserved until an Order, other than the Minute Order, was filed. Richar 

chose to do none of those things. Richard chose to make his arguments personal i 

an attempt to further poison the waters in this case. 1 

Richard claims that there has been no Notice of Entry that has been done. 

Richard is incorrect. The act of the Court faxing or emailing the Minute Order t 

counsel may be reasonably construed as being provided Notice of Entry of a 

Order. There is a reasonable amount of ambiguity. Should any Court decide on i 

own that it faxing or emailing an Order is Notice of Entry, then Eleni would b 

without recourse but to question her counsel as to why no Motion was filed. 

A. The Findings of Fact Made Should Be Altered or Amended 

Richard fails to address most of the requests for the Orders to be altered o 

amended. 

1 Richard's counsel has made it very clear on a number of occasions of her distain for family law 
and regards the area of practice beneath her contempt. Such an attitude likely leads to the snid 
comments by Richard of "'Whotion" (whine + motion) that should have no place in any lega 
submission. 
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25 
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1. Child Custody 

Richard failed to address Eleni's request that the record be corrected as t 

when she had primary physical custody. Because Richard failed to address th 

issue, the issue should be regarded as being granted. 

2. Eligibility for Retirement 

Richard fails to address the finding that Richard was first eligible to retire i 

March 2015. That date is when Eleni made her claim for the omitted pensio 

income stream. Because Richard failed to address that issue, that request should b 

considered as being granted. 

3. Child Support 

Richard complains about child support and claims that child suppo1t was a 

issue at the evidentiary hearing and that the parties were on notice of the same. 

Richard simply misstates what occurred. 

First, Judge O'Malley clearly stated what the remaining issues were at th 

settlement conference. Child support was not among them. Second, the fact tha 

Richard went over irrelevant areas at the evidentiary hearing is his choice and not 

choice that for which any one, but Richard, should be held responsible. 

Third, basic logic would not dictate that child support would be covered a 

trial. Eleni was confirmed as primary custodian of Nicholas at the beginning o 

4 of7 



2016, and Richard received his job back at the beginning of 2016. The issue o 

2 custody, and support, was resolved. 

3 

4 
As stated, orders from the February 9, 2016, hearing were unambiguous a 

5 to the issues for trial. Retroactive modification of child support was not one of th 

6 
issues. Judge O'Malley's recitation of the remaining issues did not includ 

7 

8 retroactive child support. 

9 Because of the above, the findings made should be amended and the 
10 

11 
accurately reflect the record. 

12 B. The Judgment In the Minute Order Should Be Altered or Amended 

IJ 
Richard has provided no argument to this request for relief as outlined i 

14 

15 Eleni's Motion and any of the five subheadings and therefore the same should b 

16 granted. 
17 

18 
c. Eleni Should Be Awarded Her Attorney's Fees 

19 Richard provided no opposition to this request. 
20 

II. 
21 OPPOSITION 
22 

23 
Richard makes the overly emotional request for fees. For the reasons give 

24 above, Richard's request should be denied. 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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CONCLUSION 

3 \! WHEREFORL Defendanl, ELENI KILGORE, respectfolly requests that tht.i 

1 
\ Court enter the fo!IO\ving orders. 

, Ii 
.i J _ Alterin12. and ainending the findings as indicat~d. 

{) f ........ ....... '"" 
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4. DenvinQ Richard's Coumt•rmotion in its entireiv. nnd: •' ""-' ... . 

5. For any farther relief the Court de1.:~111s proper and just. 
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Nevada Bar No. 6080 
6 l 45 Spring Mountain Road .. Suite 
201 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146 
(702) 469-3278 
Au.ornev for Defendant .· 
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2 I ·r1ic undersigned hereby certifies that on the 271
:i day of IVIarch 2017 that th9 

> I ! 

! foregoing .Reply and Opposition was served via email to Betsy .Allen~ Esq. vi<~ 
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1 TRANS FIL 
2 APR - 3 2018 

3 (C(())~W ~~·~ 
CLRK OF COURT 

4 

5 EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

6 FAMILY DIVISION 

7 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

8 

9 RICHARD SCOTT KILGORE , 

10 Plaintiff , CASE NO . D- 12 - 459171 - D 

11 vs . DEPT . I 

12 ELENI KILGORE , 

13 Defendant . 

14 
BEFORE THE HONORABLE CHERYL B . MOSS 

15 DISTRI CT COURT JUDGE 

16 TRANSCRIPT RE : ALL PENDING MOTIONS 

17 TUESDAY , MARCH 28 , 2017 

18 APPEARANCES : 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

JA-001477 

The Plaintiff : 
For the Plaintiff : 

The Defendant : 
For the Defendant : 

RICHARD SCOTT KILGORE 
BETSY ALLEN , ESQ . 
62 9 S . 6th St . 
Las Vegas , Nevada 89101 
(702 ) 386 - 9700 

ELENI KILGORE 
FRED PAGE , ESQ . 
500 N. Rainbow Blvd . , #300 
Las Vegas , Nevada 89107 
(702 ) 469 - 3278 

0·12·459171-0 KI LGORE 03/28/2017 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356 
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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA TUESDAY, MARCH 28, 2017 

2 P R 0 C E E D I N G S 

3 (THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 10:29:47) 

4 

5 THE COURT: Case D-459171, Richard Kilgore and Eleni 

6 Kilgore. I don't know if she goes by another name. 

7 MS. KILGORE: Eleni. 

8 THE COURT: Okay. Eleni. Okay. Counsel, your 

9 appearances and bar numbers. 

10 MS. ALLEN: Be -- Betsy Allen, bar number 6878, on 

11 behalf of Mr. Kilgore, the Plaintiff, who lS present. 

12 THE COURT: You're retained of unbundled? 

13 MS. ALLEN: Who knows anymore. 

14 THE COURT: Then I'll take that as a retained, 

15 because I've seen you so many times. 

16 MS. ALLEN: Don't say that. Please --

17 THE COURT: Mr. Page. 

18 MS. ALLEN: -- just don't. 

19 MR. PAGE: Good morning, Your Honor. Fred Page, bar 

20 number 6080, on behalf of Ms. Kilgore. I am bundled. 

21 THE COURT: You are unbundled? 

22 MR. PAGE: No, I am bundled. 

23 THE COURT: You're bundled, so that means you're 

24 retained. All right. Mr. Page, this is your motion to amend 

0·12-459171·0 KILGORE 03/28/2017 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356 

2 

JA-001478 



1 the opposition countermotion. I just got your six page brief 

2 reply. 

3 MR. PAGE: Yeah. 

4 THE COURT: It was emailed to me. Ms. Allen got a 

5 chance to review it? 

6 MR. PAGE: Yeah, I'm sure she did. 

7 THE COURT: If I -- okay. See if I can think. 

8 Three issues. Number one, clarification one. Who had custody 

9 within a certain time period of 2015-16. Number two, oh, boy. 

10 Now I'm like -- well, I'll let you go through it. Why don't 

11 you summarize what your motion is about? 

12 MR. PAGE: I think we --

13 THE COURT: Number two would be the -- the child 

14 I guess the child support was not an issue per the Judge 

15 Sanchez (sic) settlement conference -- or now Judge O'Malley, 

16 senior judge now. And --

17 MR. PAGE: It wasn't an issue in the order that she 

18 submitted or gave from the bench in February of 2016. 

19 THE COURT: Okay. Minute order not been reduced to 

20 an actual order. Was there any direction for a lawyer to 

21 actually convert that into an order? 

22 MR. PAGE: There was a direction from for Ms. 

23 Allen to do so. I received something a week or 10 days back. 

24 I really haven't gone through it. I did this out of an 

0·12-459171-0 KILGORE 03/28/2017 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356 
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1 abundance of caution because you did a minute order and then 

2 you served it on all parties. I'd rather not have the 

3 argument that I've blown any deadlines. So I went ahead and 

4 filed a motion to alter or amend, because these issues that 

5 exist aren't going to change. They -- they are what they are. 

6 And therefore, we may as well address those whether there's 

7 whether the minute order's a final order, whether there's 

8 another order to follow up from Ms. Allen. So --

9 THE COURT: Okay. 

10 MR. PAGE: I think these are fair -- fairly straight 

11 forward as they're listed in the motion itself that there's no 

12 factual dispute that my client had primary physical custody of 

13 the child, Nicholas, from March 2015 through to the present. 

14 Child support was calculated as though the parties had joint 

15 physical custody from December 2014 through January 2016. 

16 We're asking that though -- it's at variance with the actual 

17 reality in this case. 

18 So we would ask that the findings be altered or 

19 amended to reflect what the actual values -- I -- I don't 

20 think there's any contradiction in the record that Mom has had 

21 the -- had Nicholas full time pretty much 100 percent of the 

22 time since March of 2015. So I think 

23 THE COURT: March of 2015. 

24 MR. PAGE: -- it would be important to have the 

D-12-459171-D KILGORE 03/28/2017 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356 
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1 record reflect that. I didn't really see anything directly on 

2 point for that in the opposition filed by Dad. 

3 As to child support, we would argue that any new 

4 calculations for child support should begin in January of 2016 

5 rather than February of 2016, because at a minimum, Dad 

6 recommenced employment on January 4, 2016. That's also 

7 adequately supported in the record. 

8 As to the retirement division arrears, there is 

9 54,000. With interest, a grand total of 56,000. The amount 

10 is collectable as a judgment. The monies are due to my client 

11 as her share of the community property. And the decree was 

12 never appealed from and no 60B motion was ever filed. So it's 

13 not really an omitted asset, it's just the sense that we have 

14 this division and Mom never received her fair share of that. 

15 So if we don't allow Mom to get that money as she 

16 deems necessary, then we're going to be affecting an unequal 

17 division of community property that would be contrary to the 

18 requirements of 125D.150 (1) (b). And for that, like I said, 

19 it's not possible to do at this point because the decree has 

20 long since been filed. And the appeal time for that decree 

21 has long since passed. So we think that Mom -- any collection 

22 on that being stayed would affect something that is at 

23 variance with both the statute and the underlying case law. 

24 Retirement benefits going forward, we still have the 

D-12-459171-D KILGORE 03/28/2017 TRANSCRIPT 
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1 same problem. And that is the longer Mr. Kilgore continues to 

2 work, the longer he continues to divest my client of her 

3 rights to her community property. Once again, the same issue 

4 arises is that we're divesting my client of her rights to 

5 community property, which would be at variance with the 

6 statute and also the intent of the legislature. 

7 That child support was considered at all, again 

8 that's -- has to do with what was stated by Judge O'Malley at 

9 the settlement conference. I still have the same habit you do 

10 and I -- I first want to call her Sanchez and then call her 

11 O'Malley but Judge O'Malley --

12 THE COURT: It's O'Malley. Yeah, it's O'Malley. 

13 MR. PAGE: So we have that issue. And Judge 

14 O'Malley said these are the only issues that are left. And 

15 you further clarified that in the order that was from the 

16 February hearing. I believe it was filed in March. So the 

17 fact that Mr. Kilgore put it in his pretrial memorandum 

18 doesn't re -- revive it simply by him filing it. The fact 

19 that he decided to go over the time of trial 

20 THE COURT: Okay. 

21 MR. PAGE: doesn't change the fact that the 

22 the scope of the issues was framed by Judge O'Malley and your 

23 subsequent order. 

24 THE COURT: Seems like I feel like a deja vu on this 
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1 that this has come up before in a prior court hearing. 

2 MR. PAGE: We -- I think we talked about it in 

3 December. 

4 THE COURT: Okay. 

5 MR. PAGE: We needed some clarification. 

6 THE COURT: Appreciate your recalling it. Just you 

7 don't believe there were any orders issued or -- I thought 

8 maybe you initiated. You wanted to ask this to make sure you 

9 knew what to prepare for in the evidentiary hearing. 

10 MR. PAGE: I'm sorry? 

11 THE COURT: I thought you had brought it up. Maybe 

12 one of you brought it up. Are we doing this issue because we 

13 were going to prepare for an evidentiary hearing? Now I see 

14 this motion and I was like 

15 MR. PAGE: Oh. 

16 THE COURT: thought we had that discussion 

17 already. 

18 MR. PAGE: Prior -- prior to the trial, I don't have 

19 a recollection. That's why I was a bit puzzled when it was --

20 THE COURT: I knew you --

21 MR. PAGE: being brought up after in early 

22 November or late October. I think it was Halloween we had our 

23 last day of trial. And when you were giving your decision 

24 from the bench, I think at that time -- I was a bit puzzled at 
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1 that time because of that. 

2 THE COURT: Bef -- don't you believe before the 

3 evidentiary hearing, you asked that point of clar --

4 clarification? You just made a verbal --

5 MR. PAGE: I don't recall. I have not --

6 THE COURT: Or you pointed it out? 

7 MR. PAGE: I haven't reviewed the video record. 

8 THE COURT: Let me know if you can remember that in 

9 a prior pleading. It might have been in a pleading as well. 

10 MS. ALLEN: What? 

11 MR. PAGE: Well, he filed a pretrial memorandum 

12 saying that that's a issue. Just because he filed a pretrial 

13 memorandum saying that's an issue doesn't make it an issue. 

14 You defined the issues and Judge O'Malley defined the issues. 

15 This is what we have. 

16 THE COURT: Okay. Well, I'll go with what you have 

17 right now and then I'm going to hear from Ms. Allen. Okay. 

18 Anything else? 

19 MR. PAGE: And as far as the timing of the motion, 

20 it's -- it's better that we do this now because I don't want 

21 to harm any time deadlines that my client has. If I don't 

22 file the motion and then this comes up at a later time, I do a 

23 motion to alter or amend after another order is yet filed, the 

24 argument's going to be is that I blown my time deadline. So 
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1 they really can't have it both ways. It's simply done out of 

2 an abundance of caution to make sure my clients are preserved 

3 regardless of the circumstances. 

4 And I think this is certainly something that --

5 regardless of whether an order -- the minute order is filed or 

6 there needs to be another order on file, which is going to be 

7 the final order, these are things that can be considered and 

8 addressed by the Court because I think for at least a good 

9 number of these things, it's relatively straight forward that 

10 some of these things are at variance what's in the record. 

11 And I'd also think, as it relates to the retirement accounts 

12 and the arrears, that well, it may be an issue that runs 

13 counter to the existing statutes and case law. 

14 THE COURT: Okay. All right. Yeah, read your 

15 pleadings in your reply. Your opposition, Ms. Allen. 

16 MS. ALLEN: Yes, and so just I'll go down. So with 

17 regard to the custody issue, again, I wasn't on this case from 

18 the beginning. So I come in at a very late time. As a matter 

19 of fact, I showed up for trial if the Court remembers. But it 

20 was my understanding that the parties had retained joint 

21 physical custody of Nicholas until the point that we came in, 

22 I think October 31st, and conceded it. 

23 THE COURT: Just had those minutes up. 10/31/16 

24 Halloween, 9:00 a.m. 
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1 MS. ALLEN: We conceded it. And so I appreciated 

2 that he says the child had been with Mom, but there was no 

3 temporary order in place. There was no -- the Court saying 

4 giving a temporary joint -- or temporary primary physical to 

5 Mom or anything. It was joint until that point in time. 

6 THE COURT: Correction, if you look at the August 

7 2015 minutes with O'Malley, it says the party this Court 

8 has tempor -- temporarily resolved 

9 MS. ALLEN: Okay. 

10 THE COURT: -- the custody -- let me read it to you. 

11 It says the fine print is so small. Okay. I just saw it. 

12 Oh, that's not the one. Okay. Oh, it is. Hang on, let me 

13 get there. Let me get there. There it is. Item -- it's in 

14 the top of the minutes. This Court has temporarily resolved 

15 Nicholas issues. Court stated parties agreed to the 

16 following. Two children in the matter, joint legal of both. 

17 Respect to Richard will have shared physically -- physically 

18 -- no, physical, there's a typo, custody on an alternating 

19 weekly basis. And Richard will have discretion on attending 

20 events but he will be with Dad on Dad's weeks. Temporarily 

21 Mom will have primary custody of Nicholas reserving Da 

22 Plaintiff, Dad, and Mom to re-litigate once there is 

23 substantive progress with the new therapist. 

24 MS. ALLEN: Which none of that has been done. By 
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1 the way, to this date 

2 THE COURT: Yeah. 

3 MS. ALLEN: -- Nicholas still hasn't been --

4 THE COURT: Mom took temporary primary August 28, 

5 2015. That was with O'Malley. And then 12/31 -- 12/1/16 --

6 I'm sorry, 10/31/16 you made a stipulation for permanent joint 

7 with Richard. Keep that the same. And then Nicholas was 

8 referred Keisha Weiford or Nick Ponzo. And 

9 MS. ALLEN: Which none of that --

10 THE COURT: -- we did some interim calculations on 

11 10/31/16. 

12 MS. ALLEN: None of the counseling by the way has 

13 happened. Nothing. 

14 THE COURT: I know. 

15 MS. ALLEN: Right, so 

16 THE COURT: And Mom would have permanent primary of 

17 Nicholas but would have been as of 10/31/16. 

18 MS. ALLEN: Right, and we agreed to that. We said 

19 -- we came in and signed but we wanted the counseling. 

20 THE COURT: But there was an acknowledgment on 

21 8/22/15 that Mom would have the temporary primary. If that 

22 was acknowledged, then for sure you would get child support 

23 from August 2015 --

24 MS. ALLEN: And --
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1 THE COURT: -- forward. 

2 MS. ALLEN: And the child support is what the child 

3 support is but -- but to co -- so the last time we were here, 

4 just -- this is my irritation and hence the snarkiness in my 

5 motion, which by the way, Mr. Kilgore had nothing to do with. 

6 That was all me. 

7 THE COURT: I suspected that. 

8 MS. ALLEN: We -- we come back -- this is why I -- I 

9 truly did quit litigating in -- in Family Court because we 

10 just come back like weekly. It's just a constant series of I 

11 -- I don't like it so I'm going to do this, I don't like it so 

12 I'm going to do I -- it just it gets old. The Court --

13 THE COURT: Well 

14 MS. ALLEN: -- makes a ruling. This is how it 

15 works. 

16 THE COURT: And that's what sanctions rule 11, 37 

17 are. 

18 MS. ALLEN: But this is how it works generally. You 

19 -- you file your motions, you go to trial, the Court or the 

20 jury makes a decision, there's an order, and then you appeal 

21 it, right? We don't come back 54 ways of Sunday. 

22 THE COURT: There's NRCP -- what is it? 

23 MR. PAGE: 52. 

24 MS. ALLEN: So 
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1 THE COURT: 52, motion to amend. 

2 MS. ALLEN: So but with regard to the child support 

3 issue, he keeps saying Mr. Kilgore -- that -- that wasn't an 

4 issue at trial. Right? We keep the -- this -- this 

5 constantly comes up. And I'm -- at least I'm willing to get 

6 up and say, you know what, the child support is what the child 

7 support is with regard to Nicholas and that issue. And that's 

8 fine. Whatever the Court deems reasonable with regard to the 

9 fact that there was a temporary order for custody of Nicholas. 

10 But he -- the -- the reason why we're back in court 

11 is my client loses his job in October of 2014. He loses his 

12 job. And as a result of that, he asked for a modification. 

13 That -- that issue was never decided. We -- like there was 

14 never any finality on that decision. And Mr. Page just keeps 

15 whining about the fact that it wasn't part of it. It was in 

16 his pretrial memorandum. 

17 But let's ignore the fact that it's in his pretrial 

18 memorandum and let's talk about the -- what day of -- of 

19 testimony that we had about my client's job and what he did, 

20 you know, to try to like stave off the bleeding because he 

21 didn't have an income. And the fact that he, you know, he 

22 appealed it and all these things. Why would we discuss in any 

23 manner, shape, or form, right, his -- his job and why he lost 

24 it and what he did to try to get other employ -- why would we 
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1 discuss any of that if child support was not an issue? That 

2 is the most ridiculous thing I've ever heard in my life. 

3 Child support was absolutely an issue in this case. 

4 And the fact that Mrs. Kilgore is unhappy that she came out on 

5 the losing end of the child support issue, give me a break. 

6 My client owes her, what, 50 some thousand dollars from his 

7 retirement, which this -- this only serves to make me even 

8 more irate. 

9 He -- Mr. Page actually says the longer Mr. Kilgore 

10 works, right, the longer she suffers. So my client's not 

11 supposed to work anymore? That is the most ludicrous thing I 

12 think I've ever heard next to the child support argument. 

13 This is this is ridiculous. 

14 This woman is making more money than my client is. 

15 And now she wants to go into and get a judgment on his -- on 

16 his paycheck, complaining because the Court stayed the 

17 judgment? So she goes in and she's allowed to garnish his 

18 wages? What is supposed to do? Live in a box? That's 

19 essentially what she wants. My good friend, John Grays (ph), 

20 once told me that the -- the way that family court works is 

21 if, you know -- if you run over them with a semi, they want 

22 you to back over them a couple of times because they're not 

23 happy until there's blood everywhere. 

24 THE COURT: Let's stick with the facts in this case 
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1 and the procedural history. 

2 MS. ALLEN: Well, Your Honor --

3 THE COURT: And I've heard everything you said, 

4 obviously. And -- and it's --

5 MS. ALLEN: The reason why -- and I'll tell Mr. 

6 Page. The reason why the Court set the end -- or January is 

7 -- is the date for the child support -- he said it should have 

8 been I think February. 

9 THE COURT: Let me -- let me --

10 MR. PAGE: It should have been -- you said February, 

11 it should have been January. 

12 THE COURT: -- put this in perspective here. 

13 MS. ALLEN: Yeah, the reason the Court -- well the 

14 reason --

15 THE COURT: The December 1st, 2016 court minutes 

16 says we will supercede anything on 10/31/16. And this is the 

17 part that they want amended. Item three of the 12/1/16 

18 minutes, for December 2014 to January 2016, Mom and Dad 

19 continue to maintain joint physical custody of the children. 

20 That's on me, I wrote that. 

21 If you look at the August 2015 court minutes with 

22 Judge O'Malley, there is a reference there that says 

23 temporarily resolve -- this Court has to tempor -- there's 

24 typos. This Court probably says has to temporarily resolve 
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1 the Nicholas issues. They agree joint legal of both, continue 

2 to have shared of Richard. And then Mom would have temporary 

3 primary. Now that Court made -- Judge O'Malley made that 

4 finding on August 2015. 

5 Mr. Page's argument is basically he's telling the 

6 Court maybe the Court kind of missed the boat on that on 

7 August 2015. Until that next issue -- the same issue was 

8 brought up a year and like two months later. 

9 MS. ALLEN: Okay. 

10 THE COURT: 10/31/16 permanent primary physical 

11 custody of Nicholas to Mom --

12 MS. ALLEN: And --

13 THE COURT: -- but has anything changed? We --

14 everybody knew of Nick that Mom had primary of Nick from 

15 August 2015. So yes, it's kind of --

16 (COUNSEL AND CLIENT CONFER BRIEFLY) 

17 THE COURT: You know, this is where Mom wants to 

18 recoup the money from August 15, 2015 until 10/31/16, but my 

19 calculations in item three was joint physical from December 

20 2014 to January 2016. It's kind of like it's on the tip of 

21 your nose. You can't -- you can't ignore it. And what am I 

22 supposed to do with that? 

23 MS. ALLEN: I just -- no, Your Honor, I just said --

24 THE COURT: And he wants me to correct a substantive 
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1 error. 

2 MS. ALLEN: I just said it is what it is. If that's 

3 the case -- again, I wasn't part of this case. 

4 THE COURT: Then we do we got to redo the 

5 calculations. 

6 MS. ALLEN: And if that's what he -- that's what he 

7 wants to correct, I have no problem with it. 

8 THE COURT: I'll tell you right now, this case was 

9 kind of a -- and not in any derogatory way, it was kind of a 

10 mess. My court clerk couldn't even figure out how to write 

11 the court minutes. So I took full responsibility and I wrote 

12 these court minutes. And I spent hours and hours 

13 MS. ALLEN: Sure you did. 

14 THE COURT: -- weekends on it trying to make sure I 

15 got these calculations correct and the time periods. Now, for 

16 clarity's sake, Mr. Page pointed that out, I'm always 

17 cautious. I'm like okay, why you bring this back again. Sarne 

18 way you felt about that, but I -- I'm looking at it. And I'm 

19 kind of asking Counsel put their heads together and say is 

20 anybody on notice or does this -- these temporary orders 

21 indicate some kind of defacto. And it was an agreement and 

22 it's in the minutes. The minutes are kind of -- protect the 

23 record on that. 

24 So what we're fighting over here is August 2015 Morn 
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1 had primary. So she wants a Wright vs. Osburn on Richard and 

2 she wants 18 percent from Dad based on whatever his income was 

3 deemed to be for these months, 8/15 until the final, final 

4 order on 10/31/16, which pretty much is 8/15 -- August 2015 

5 all the way to the present. 

6 MS. ALLEN: Which is fine. 

7 THE COURT: But I 

8 MS. ALLEN: And again, I didn't -- I'm not --

9 THE COURT: I'm looking to see if I miscalculated 

10 item three on 12/30 -- 12/1/16 where I declare them to be 

11 joint physical custody of the children. What I was thinking 

12 at that time was -- was there a motion -- was there a motion 

13 before me? Or when did the actual request come on board? But 

14 it looks like the record appears to be more -- more -- the 

15 record appears to be more logically clear there that Mom had 

16 primary from August 2015 forward. 

17 MS. ALLEN: And we -- that's fine. I again, that 

18 -- it is what it is with regard to the minutes. I am -- I --

19 that's -- if that's what it says, that's what it says. 

20 THE COURT: You just got to do recalculation. 

21 MS. ALLEN: And then it needs to be recalculated but 

22 all this other stuff that he brings up, this is all the other 

23 -- the stuff that he argued before. Meanwhile, as of March 

24 15th, D.A. Family Support is still taking $1500 out of my 
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1 client's paycheck because we don't have a final order in this 

2 case. 

3 THE COURT: It says Attorney Allen prepare the 

4 order. 

5 MS. ALLEN: It is. I prepared it, I sent it to Mr. 

6 Page about a week ago. What had happened was 

7 THE COURT: December? It's now Mar end of March. 

8 MS. ALLEN: There was -- right, but what had 

9 happened was, Your Honor, I -- we waited. As a matter of 

10 fact, Mr. Page contacted me and he goes --

11 THE COURT: Yeah. 

12 MS. ALLEN: -- why haven't you done the order. And 

13 I said I don't have the minutes because I didn't at the time. 

14 I got them about a week later but --

15 THE COURT: If I draft this, we put them in your 

16 attorney folders the same day. 

17 MS. ALLEN: I don't have an attorney folder. 

18 THE COURT: What? 

19 MS. ALLEN: I don't have one. 

20 THE COURT: Okay. 

21 MS. ALLEN: I don't 

22 THE COURT: Well, my girls should have figured that 

23 out. If there's no attorney folder, it should be faxed or 

24 emailed to you. 
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1 MS. ALLEN: It -- I believe it was emailed to me at 

2 some point. So, but 

3 THE COURT: The girls might have an email limit. 

4 MS. ALLEN: -- in our conversations, I think there 

5 was a misunderstanding on my part because I thought Mr. Page 

6 was doing it but I realized he wasn't. I prepared. 

7 THE COURT: Unh-uhn (negative). Well, let me see. 

8 MS. ALLEN: And I did a detailed 

9 THE COURT: I thought you were supposed to do it. 

10 MS. ALLEN: In my conversation with him. 

11 THE COURT: Oh okay. Understood. 

12 MS. ALLEN: I -- it was a mistake on my part. So I 

13 -- I went through and I did it. And I sent it to him last 

14 week. And I said look at it in comparison with the notes and 

15 tell me if you want any changes to it aside from the fact of 

16 what you're re-litigating. 

17 THE COURT: Minutes say attorney Allen prepare the 

18 order and the D.A. order. 

19 MS. ALLEN: And I didn't get any response from him. 

20 THE COURT: Okay. 

21 MS. ALLEN: So there's an order. There's -- I did a 

22 detailed findings and order. I did 

23 THE COURT: Well, you just had to block and copy and 

24 then convert that to an order. That's it, it's all specific 
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1 in there. 

2 MS. ALLEN: Well, I change -- I -- I'm --

3 THE COURT: Just fine. Okay. 

4 MS. ALLEN: I -- I -- anyways, I -- whatever. I --

5 I --

6 THE COURT: You see how lengthy that was. 

7 MS. ALLEN: It was -- it was fixed and I did -- and 

8 I did it. And I sent it over to him. 

9 THE COURT: Okay. 

10 MS. ALLEN: So --

11 THE COURT: Neither here nor there but anyway 

12 MS. ALLEN: So there -- there needs to be --

13 THE COURT: Where's the order now? 

14 MS. ALLEN: What? 

15 THE COURT: Where's the order now? 

16 MS. ALLEN: I gave it to him. 

17 THE COURT: You have it, Mr. Page? 

18 MR. PAGE: I have it. 

19 THE COURT: And any issues with it? Is it verbatim 

20 from the minutes? 

21 MR. PAGE: I have --

22 THE COURT: She might have tweaked a few things. 

23 MR. PAGE: I have not done a compare and contrast 

24 with the minutes as of yet. 

D-12-459171-D KILGORE 03/28/2017 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356 

21 

JA-001491, 



1 MS. ALLEN: But so 

2 THE COURT: Okay. 

3 MS. ALLEN: My client is 

4 MR. PAGE: I mean, I -- I was in 

5 THE COURT: I know, I wrote a lot there and takes 

6 time. 

7 MS. ALLEN: So he's putting the money in her account 

8 as -- as per the --

9 MR. PAGE: No, he's not. 

10 MS. ALLEN: court order for the --

11 MR. PAGE: No, he's not. 

12 MS. ALLEN: for the -- what what do you call 

13 it? The PERS, the retirement. And then 

14 THE COURT: The 350 a month. Yeah. 

15 MS. ALLEN: Well, no, he minused the -- because 

16 they're -- they're taking 1500 out of his check 

17 THE COURT: I got to figure what that 

18 MS. ALLEN: -- for child support. 

19 THE COURT: Yeah, I got to figure what the math is. 

20 MS. ALLEN: So he is minusing that from the -- from 

21 the --

22 THE COURT: Because D.A. don't have that order to 

23 put him on --

24 MS. ALLEN: And I just called them. 
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1 THE COURT: What's the final? 

2 MS. ALLEN: And that they won't do anything without 

3 an order. 

4 THE COURT: Where's he at now? What's his like 

5 current? 350 on that one. 

6 MS. ALLEN: 1292. 

7 THE COURT: Is it 1292? They're taking too much. 

8 MS. ALLEN: Right, and they won't do anything 

9 without an order. And so I need to get a final order in this 

10 case for a number of reasons. Number one is this needs to be 

11 fixed. Number two, there's an appel -- there's a very large 

12 appellate issue here on the on the retirement that -- and 

13 -- no disrespect --

14 THE COURT: It could have been a case of first 

15 impression. 

16 MS. ALLEN: -- to the Court. I believe you did 

17 exactly what you were supposed to do per the statute but I 

18 think my client has a substantial appeal here. And he wants 

19 to get moving on that. 

20 THE COURT: We talked about that. This might be the 

21 first case that might 

22 MS. ALLEN: Right. 

23 THE COURT: have a ruling on the Supreme Court. 

24 Okay. Well, based on 
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1 MS. ALLEN: So I just need the recalculation on the 

2 child support for Nicholas. 

3 THE COURT: Number one, if it appears to me, I can't 

4 ignore I can't ignore the obvious. And it's not just one, 

5 but two sets of court minutes where it indicates Mom did have 

6 primary of Nicholas from August 2015 forward. For the time 

7 period August 2015 until -- let's see. I calculate until 

8 January 2016. That -- we have to do the -- the calculation on 

9 that. So that's how many months? August 2015 until -- I'm 

10 trying to save my number three on my court minutes because I 

11 did it from 12/14 to January 16. So it actually would --

12 MS. ALLEN: Oh, yeah. 

13 THE COURT: -- be 12 -- December 2014 until July 

14 2015. 

15 MS. ALLEN: And he was unem --

16 THE COURT: And then there's a time period from 

17 August 2015. So when did I start -- in February 2016, we did 

18 Dad's income, but where did I make the indication of the 

19 change in cus -- I think I indicated the change of custody 

20 occurred on October 2016 when it shouldn't --

21 MS. ALLEN: Right. 

22 THE COURT: -- have been joint. 

23 MS. ALLEN: But, Your Honor, just keep in mind that 

24 my client was unemployed all those months. 

D-12-459171-D KILGORE 03/28/2017 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356 

24 

JA-001500 



1 THE COURT: What did I do? 

2 MS. ALLEN: But my client was unem --

3 THE COURT: That -- that's early 2016. That's when 

4 he tried -- he came in and made the request to the Court to 

5 readjust the child support. I have here on item five -- on 

6 July 2016' I did these calculations to joint of Richard. 

7 And then -- but did I put Mom -- I did put Dad on 18 

8 percent for Nicholas. So that was an acknowledgment. I 

9 believe that looks like an acknowledgment in my calculations 

10 that Dad was paying for primary to Mom of Nicholas. And then 

11 I subtracted the amounts on item five of my December 1st, 2016 

12 court minutes. So something happened there. 

13 So what was the time period? From February to June, 

14 Dad would pay 18 percent for Nicholas. Well, this is this 

15 is kind of promising because I did put Dad on 18 percent for 

16 Nicholas, which was an acknowledgment of custody. So that 

17 that shortens your time period of the recalculations, Mr. 

18 Page, from August 2015 I believe until January 2016. All 

19 right. So thank goodness we only have to do August, 

20 September, October, November, December, and January. That's 

21 six months where I would have to just apply the item four from 

22 February 2016. I had Dad at -- what -- there was a change of 

23 his income. You got your job back --

24 MS. ALLEN: He got his job back. 
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1 THE COURT: in January, February 2016. 

2 MS. ALLEN: He got it back 

3 THE COURT: So 

4 MS. ALLEN: at the end of January of 2016. 

5 THE COURT: August 2015 until January 2016, you were 

6 unemployed. Then I have to put you on primary of Nicholas at 

7 a hundred and then Mom would pay you. And then you do the 

8 shared. And then we -- and we just do the difference with 

9 Mom's because she's got the bigger amount. You guys could sit 

10 down and do that. I mean, I don't like to do math. I have to 

11 sit down and do that kind of math. It's determinable because 

12 I already determined it. It says Mom's 25 percent would have 

13 been 1170. So what you do is you just do the -- for the 

14 Richard, right? And then Dad would have been not 200, but 

15 100. So you do 1070 for -- for the Richard. And then for the 

16 -- the Nicholas, Mom -- Dad would be paying 100, isn't that 

17 correct? Because he's got -- Mom's got primary. 

18 MS. ALLEN: Yeah. 

19 THE COURT: So isn't that 970? 

20 MS. ALLEN: Mom -- so Mom -- during that time 

21 period --

22 THE COURT: And you what? You know what amount came 

23 out on -- on that anyway was 970? Is that weird? But it says 

24 970. And then subtracting the 213 for Mom providing health 
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1 insurance, Mom would pay it should have been 970 minus 

2 Mom would get a discount of 213, right? So Mom would be kind 

3 of on the hook for 757. And I put 757 per month times 13 

4 months for that time period. Dad should have received from 

5 Mom the amount -- for some reason, the -- the math is still 

6 the same. 9841 on item three of the court minutes. Is -- the 

7 math still came out the same the way I applied it because he 

8 was on unemployed rate. 

9 MR. PAGE: He was unemployed but also he didn't 

10 resume employment end of January. He resumed employment 

11 January 4th at -- at worst. 

12 MS. ALLEN: And -- and Your Honor, actually it kind 

13 of was at the end of January but even if it wasn't, the Court 

14 didn't give him credit for O -- October 2014. You said 

15 because of when he -- when he was terminated on -- in October 

16 of 2014 and when he resumed in January --

17 THE COURT: He didn't get paid. 

18 MS. ALLEN: of 2016, it -- it made it a wash. 

19 THE COURT: It kind of washed it off. 

20 MS. ALLEN: So you didn't give him credit for 

21 October of 2014 and she doesn't get January. And that was 

22 that was the -- the sort of give and take that the Court did. 

23 MR. PAGE: The I -- there was no such statement 

24 referenced that the Court ever made such a statement. The 
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1 reality is 

2 THE COURT: Honestly, I can't remember it. Sounds 

3 familiar, but I can't remember it. 

4 MS. ALLEN: I re -- I distinctly remember the Court 

5 saying in your -- in your --

6 THE COURT: Yeah, which hearing? 

7 MS. ALLEN: -- monologue. 

8 THE COURT: Which court minutes? 

9 MS. ALLEN: But you said basically, you know, you --

10 you terminated in sometime in October and resumed sometime --

11 THE COURT: Cheap 

12 MS. ALLEN: -- in January so we're going to make 

13 those a wash. 

14 THE COURT: The cheapest way to find out is to go 

15 get -- get the video cite. 

16 MS. ALLEN: So we started it in November of '14 to 

17 February. 

18 THE COURT: Sounds familiar. 

19 MR. PAGE: There is no factual dispute that his 

20 implement restarted in January 4th. Therefore his higher 

21 child support amount should commence in January. There is a 

22 definite factual dispute that the Court ever made such a 

23 statement for analysis. 

24 MS. ALLEN: Then let's go back and we'll do -- we'll 
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1 give him the entire month of October of 2014 because that's 

2 when he lost his job. That's fair. I have no problem with 

3 that. 

4 THE COURT: What did I put you on for October 2014? 

5 Do you remember? 

6 MR. PAGE: There's no -- there's nothing in the 

7 record that his child support --

8 MR. KILGORE: It was October 14th. 

9 THE COURT: Did I put you on full child support? 

10 And you got you got -- didn't get any pay on October -- the 

11 whole month of October? 

12 MR. KILGORE: No, I was terminated. And I was up 

13 until --

14 THE COURT: Early October? You were terminated 

15 early October? 

16 MR. KILGORE: October 14th. 

17 THE COURT: And then the court order was put -- you 

18 paid the full child support in October? 

19 MR. KILGORE: I -- you never modified it throughout 

20 the whole 

21 MS. ALLEN: Process. 

22 MR. KILGORE: -- procedure. 

23 THE COURT: Yeah. 

24 MS. ALLEN: This was never modified the whole time. 
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1 MR. KILGORE: It was never modified. I paid 1500 

2 until I couldn't pay it no more. 

3 THE COURT: Sounds like a wash to me. 

4 MR. PAGE: The motion was not filed until November. 

5 THE COURT: You think it might be on a video record 

6 where we dis cu -- your attorney argued that? 

7 MR. KILGORE: It was --

8 THE COURT: To just wash out that 

9 MR. KILGORE: I think it was 

10 THE COURT: -- the October and the January? 

11 MR. KILGORE: November when we filed for a motion. 

12 Our first court date was in December, I believe. 

13 MR. PAGE: The law under Day in this case would be 

14 child support once accrued is non-modifiable. We're unable wa 

15 -- wipe it out retroactively particularly since we already 

16 filed --

17 THE COURT: You really want to get technical, you 

18 look at the due date on the decree and find out when the due 

19 date would have been. 

20 MR. PAGE: The due date would be the 1st. 

21 THE COURT: But then if I -- but then -- but then if 

22 he was terminated early October and I did -- and he did pay 

23 the full child support -- okay. 2014. The question is he 

24 couldn't get to court until January 2015. I think that's when 
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1 he started his child support reduction motion. 

2 MS. ALLEN: He -- no, he held --

3 MR. KILGORE: No, it was in --

4 THE COURT: Or he filed right away. 

5 MR. PAGE: It was at the end of December. 

6 MR. KILGORE: It was in December. 

7 MR. PAGE: End of December. 

8 THE COURT: Under Ramaciotti, you -- you start from 

9 the date that you filed the motion. We can't do any 

10 retroactive --

11 MS. ALLEN: Right, and we di -- but the -- the -- he 

12 didn't resume work though until like middle of January. And 

13 so that's 

14 MR. PAGE: It was January 4th. We all know this. 

15 THE COURT: No, he was like he didn't --

16 MR. PAGE: He testified to it. 

17 THE COURT: -- the job back -- he was like over a 

18 year. 

19 MS. ALLEN: Yeah, he was over a year. 

20 THE COURT: It was like over a year. 

21 MS. ALLEN: Yeah, absolutely. 

22 THE COURT: You know, what happens to these dads 

23 when they file these, they get terminated early October. What 

24 you got to do -- and they don't know that. A lot of them 
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1 don't know that when they don't have counsel available at all 

2 times. They wait until like two months down the road. Oh, I 

3 better file a motion. Then they don't know the 

4 non-retroactivity application. We cannot retroactively apply 

5 and give you any credits but then the moms get to keep the 

6 child support even though you weren't earing the money defacto 

7 wise. 

8 It's -- it's kind of -- I don't want to say flaw in 

9 our system but that's the Day vs Day case. You see what I'm 

10 saying? If you knew you got terminated like October 4th, you 

11 should have been filing in court October 5th to preserve your 

12 rights to be off the hook on -- kind of on October. Not for 

13 the child full child support but on the unemployed rate. 

14 It's a terrible consequence, isn't it? Well, at least for 

15 him, not for Mom. She would be entitled to the money. One 

16 way to look at it is to view it under that theory of Day vs 

17 Day, no retroactivity. 

18 MR. PAGE: Correct. 

19 THE COURT: So you would have to find out when he 

20 made the -- just take a look at when he filed his motion. 

21 Soon as he found out he got terminated October -- because he 

22 got terminated after the settlement conf -- no, before. He 

23 got terminated -- wait a minute. Oh, I got logged out. When 

24 did he file his motion after he -- 2014? 
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1 MR. PAGE: I don't 

2 THE COURT: I just logged mysel I got logged out. 

3 I hate this system. One, I could suggest go find the video 

4 cite. You got a lot more free time than I do. And tell me 

5 where I said I'll wash out January and October. Two, we can 

6 go back and look at when he filed his motion and then apply 

7 Day vs Day, no retroactivity. If 

8 MS. ALLEN: It would have been in October. 

9 THE COURT: And I don't know what the result would 

10 be because now you're opening up a can of worms or I'm 

11 confirming that -- 10/21? He did come back right away. So he 

12 -- about two and a half weeks later he came back. He knew to 

13 file the motion. 

14 MS. ALLEN: Hm? 

15 THE COURT: He knew to file the motion. So if I say 

16 he filed in that month, then he would get the retroactivity 

17 for that month. 

18 MS. ALLEN: He filed it 10/21? 

19 THE COURT: According to motion to reduce child 

20 support. That's why I write this down. 

21 MS. ALLEN: I know that when the Court said that 

22 about washing out October and January, it was October 31st. 

23 THE COURT: The Court -- the minutes? 

24 MS. ALLEN: Well, I don't know if it was in the 
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1 minutes. I know it will be on the video. I know -- I 

2 remember the Court saying that. I -- there's no place I would 

3 have gotten that other than you saying that. 

4 THE COURT: Beginning 2014, Mom's child support was 

5 set at 950 based on joint physical custody. And I ran it 

6 through January 2016. I redid it so I ran it only until 

7 August 2015 where they would have the benefit of joint. And 

8 then 2015 -- August 2015 forward, I did the primary, which 

9 would have been a hundred from Dad. It would be a straight 

10 100 from Dad. And then you do the Wright v. Osburn for 

11 Richard and then you subtract the -- I'm sorry, you don't 

12 subtract, you add the hundred. You're fighting about a few 

13 hundred dollars here. 

14 MS. ALLEN: Right. 

15 THE COURT: August 2015. 

16 MR. PAGE: Additional issue here. Was -- was Dad 

17 receiving unemployment from he State of Nevada during this 

18 time as well? 

19 THE COURT: August 2015 we knew Dad was unemployed. 

20 Couldn't work. So --

21 MR. PAGE: And -- and receiving unemployment. 

22 THE COURT: For the months of August, September, 

23 October, November, December, January no, December --

24 January you said he got his job back? Or no, you want to 
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1 start a -- if I included January, August, September, October, 

2 November, December, January, it's six months at a hundred 

3 dollars that $600 would go to Mom but then Mom would be pay 

4 Dad the 1170 minus Dad's 100 for Richard. So that would be 

5 1070. 

6 MR. PAGE: You're not taking into account the caps. 

7 THE COURT: 1070 -- no, Mom wouldn't be capped out. 

8 MR. PAGE: Yes, she would be capped out because it's 

9 a straight 18 percent -- I'm sorry, it would be -- you --

10 THE COURT: Wait. 

11 MR. PAGE: -- off set the new account. 

12 THE COURT: Well, yeah. No. What you do is you 

13 take 25 percent of Mom's which was the 1170. I don't cap it. 

14 It's 25 percent. 

15 MR. PAGE: But you first -- first you offset and 

16 then you cap. 

17 THE COURT: Right. Wesley v. Foster. 

18 MR. PAGE: Right. 

19 THE COURT: You take 25 percent of Mom's for 

20 Richard, 25 percent of Dad's which would have been the 200. 

21 MR. PAGE: 1070. 

22 THE COURT: 1170 

23 MR. PAGE: And you cap. 

24 THE COURT: minus 200 is 970. Mom's paying for 

D-12-459171-D KILGORE 03/28/2017 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356 

35 



1 two kids. You don't -- there's no cap of like 430 -- 485 

2 or --

3 MR. PAGE: If Mom --

4 THE COURT: -- 495. 

5 MR. PAGE: If Mom is at 5,000 -- say Mom is 

6 hypothetically at $5,000 per month. If you do the Wright vs. 

7 Osburn --

8 THE COURT: Oh, you --

9 MR. PAGE: -- calculation 

10 THE COURT: -- you --

11 MR. PAGE: as modified by Wesley vs. Foster. 

12 What we should be doing is once we determine what Mom's amount 

13 is, then you apply the cap so then it should be whatever --

14 THE COURT: I don't know where you're coming with 

15 that --

16 MR. PAGE: -- one of the presumptive 

17 THE COURT: -- fuzzy math. You take you let 25 

18 percent, 1170, okay, is Mom's. Then you take 200 for Dad's 

19 unemployed on -- for Richard, you get 970. You get 970. 

20 That's Wright vs. Osburn. You don't -- you -- you don't cap, 

21 because Mom -- Mom is at 11 -- 1170. You do it before you 

22 cap. But if Mom's obligation is 970, there is no way she be 

23 capped out at two kids based on that income back in 2014, 

24 2015. The caps were like six something, five --
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1 MR. PAGE: Right. 

2 THE COURT: something. 

3 MR. PAGE: But that's -- because if -- if Morn --

4 because of Ms. -- in that situation, if they're -- if -- if 

5 just Richard exists and Morn is paying child support to Dad 

6 because he's unemployed, she would be paying more than if he 

7 has primary physical custody. That's obviously a result 

8 it's not intended by the Nevada legislature. That's --

9 THE COURT: I'm just doing what the case law is 

10 telling me to do. 

11 MR. PAGE: You offset, then you cap. The cap should 

12 for -- Morn should be whatever it is for 670 for her income 

13 bracket 

14 THE COURT: Well, her --

15 MR. PAGE: -- for Richard. 

16 THE COURT: 25 percent was 1170. I don't know. 

17 MR. PAGE: I' rn sorry, say that again? 

18 THE COURT: Her 25 percent for two kids was 1170. 

19 MR. PAGE: Oh, I thought you're talking about one 

20 kid. I' rn sorry. I thought you were saying about Richard and 

21 Nicholas 

22 THE COURT: Oh, no. 

23 MR. PAGE: -- was out of the equation. 

24 THE COURT: We're talking about the calculation 
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1 MR. PAGE: Okay. 

2 THE COURT: -- for Richard. 

3 MR. PAGE: Neverrnind then. 

4 THE COURT: Yeah, it would be --

5 MR. PAGE: Neverrnind. 

6 THE COURT: -- 25 percent. 

7 MR. PAGE: Okay. 

8 THE COURT: I follow you. 

9 MR. PAGE: Okay. 

10 THE COURT: Okay. So it's 970, but then she's also 

11 paying health insurance. 

12 MR. PAGE: Yeah. 

13 THE COURT: Right? So you take -- what you have --

14 you have to do is take 970 and then that would -- Morn would 

15 pay Dad and then you take back out 213. So for -- you back it 

16 out because she gets the discount, he's at 757. If you look 

17 at my court minutes, there's a number there of 757. So it 

18 appears the math is kind of still good. For some reason, 

19 that's how it turned out. Maybe it was just worded wrong, but 

20 I think that was my intention. Call it what it is. I did 

21 knew -- I did -- I did make Dad pay the 18 percent for 

22 Nicholas on that 100. So 757. And then Morn to Dad. And then 

23 Dad has to pay Morn a hundred for Nicholas. So it would be --

24 wouldn't it be like 657? Because if she gets a further 
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1 reduction because Dad would owe her for Nicholas. So yeah, 

2 maybe you got to have a working session to recalculate this 

3 and put our heads together and make sure. 

4 MS. ALLEN: I -- I really 

5 THE COURT: It appears to me 

6 MS. ALLEN: The -- the Hearing Master is going to 

7 continue to -- to take out the wrong amount until we -- we 

8 figure this out. That's the only -- and the other part of 

9 this is 

10 THE COURT: I got to get you back right -- in right 

11 away. And I can't do this in the middle of my morning 

12 calendar. 

13 MS. ALLEN: I -- I can't either. 

14 THE COURT: I need a half a day --

15 MS. ALLEN: I'm --

16 THE COURT: -- with you guys to run this math 

17 month-by-month. 

18 MS. ALLEN: My kid just text me. I need to get 

19 something to one of my kids. But I -- but I need to get this 

20 figured out, because the Hearing Master not only has -- is --

21 continuing the 1500, they have not taken that suspension off 

22 of my client's record, so he's still paying more in insurance. 

23 And he has this appeal issue that he wants to get moving on. 

24 THE COURT: And why don't you just maybe just -- do 
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1 you have a half day available? 

2 MS. ALLEN: Because I -- and the thing is I know 

3 that Mr. Page and his client want the PERS issue settled at 

4 some point and going up on appeal potentially can do that. 

5 And so --

6 THE COURT: I'm like in the next couple of weeks. I 

7 know. 

8 MR. PAGE: Also while you're looking at that here, 

9 an issue that's a -- an initial of -- issue of complication is 

10 that Mr. Kilgore should have been receiving 

11 THE COURT: Well --

12 MR. PAGE: -- unemployment from the state of Nevada 

13 during a portion of time he's unemployed. I don't believe 

14 that's ever been taken into --

15 THE COURT: You're going to need 

16 MR. PAGE: -- consideration. 

17 THE COURT: -- me here. I mean, I would say Mr. 

18 Page, Ms. Allen, sit down, just do the math. But you guys 

19 might come up with a field of disagreements and I have to be 

20 the one to put my foot down and say this is -- this is what --

21 how I made my order, yeah. 

22 MR. PAGE: I mean, if I --

23 THE COURT: Okay. I don't think Mr. Page has, you 

24 know, wasted my time in court here. I think I need -- might 
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1 have to do it, but it might be -- the calculations might shave 

2 off a few dollars or it might just end up being the same 

3 calculations, just I had the time periods wrong. 

4 This was very difficult to write these court 

5 minutes. I mean, my court clerk that was responsible for 

6 these minutes, she's -- she's pretty sharp. And she -- and 

7 literally, she watched the video six times. I watched it at 

8 least three times so I can make sure and it was -- it was 

9 just all over the place and I had to I had to make sure I 

10 calculated these time 

11 MS. ALLEN: So 

12 THE COURT: periods. 

13 MS. ALLEN: you want us to come back. 

14 THE COURT: Huh? 

15 MS. ALLEN: You want us to come back? 

16 THE COURT: Yeah. We'll have to do it and I got to 

17 make room for you guys. You know, right now I'm setting out 

18 to end of August. That's how busy I am. Might have to do --

19 if I had my courtrooms on 

20 MR. PAGE: I've got trial that may settle at the end 

21 of April. 

22 THE COURT: Like how end of the April? Because --

23 MR. PAGE: The 27th. 

24 THE COURT: I'm even cancelling conf -- the 
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1 District Judge's conference. I can't go because I'm so busy. 

2 And I'm starting to fill those dates that I'm supposed to be 

3 off and in -- in Reno. I'm filling those with trials and 

4 orders shortening times. So I'm -- I'm not going to any 

5 conferences this year. 

6 I'm looking -- or what -- when in April? 

7 MR. PAGE: I think there's a decent chance my 

8 case --

9 THE COURT: I'm looking around --

10 MR. PAGE: -- trial for the 27th will settle. 

11 THE COURT: The conference that I'm not going to is 

12 maybe 19, 20, 21, I think. But then my girls have been 

13 snapping up the dates. So I don't know what's been filled on 

14 the calendar. So let me look. I'm going to try to -- maybe 

15 try to look at April. Let me check with Susanna or get her on 

16 the phone and find out which dates she snapped up. 

17 What hours -- what's your schedules on like April 

18 19, 20, 21? The Monday is the I think the Monday -- I'm 

19 sorry, the Wednesday is the April 19th. 

20 MS. ALLEN: I can do that. Well, I have an 8:00 

21 o'clock in -- in -- at the RJC. 

22 THE COURT: Do you want to do afternoon? I think --

23 MS. ALLEN: I'm theoretically scheduled to start --

24 to start a trial on the 17th in front of Kephart. 

D-12-459171-D KILGORE 03/28/2017 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356 

42 

JA-001518 



1 THE COURT: Tell her to pull up the calendar, like 

2 the afternoon of the 18th or the 19th, maybe. 

3 MS. ALLEN: Your -- Your Honor --

4 THE COURT: Because I don't know if we snapped up 

5 the --

6 MS. ALLEN: I'm theoretically supposed to start a 

7 trial on the --

8 THE COURT: When? 

9 MS. ALLEN: -- 17th? 

10 THE COURT: Oh, forget that. 

11 MS. ALLEN: Like a criminal trial, so two weeks, not 

12 just a day. 

13 THE COURT: Those -- is that trial going to go 11 --

14 get continued to 11? 

15 MS. ALLEN: I know. And I don't know. I can't 

16 but right -- as of right now, this is the second or third 

17 setting and everybody is pushing to go forward, so I -- I 

18 don't know. 

19 THE COURT: You think it's going to go? 

20 MS. ALLEN: I'm I'm trying. 

21 THE COURT: I need a half day or at least two hours 

22 with Kilgore. 

23 THE CLERK: In the next week couple of weeks, 

24 we're --
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1 THE COURT: To do the math. I've got a trial this 

2 afternoon, so I can't do it, I think. She's looking? She's 

3 going to look. 

4 MS. ALLEN: What about the 14th? 

5 THE COURT: Wait, just to give you guys some 

6 guidance, I mean, probably if I take a look at it, because 

7 I can't say motion granted or not granted until I figure out 

8 what the numbers are. We end up being in the same place or 

9 we're just off by a few dollars, great. If parents do their 

10 own calcula -- calculations and want to come up with their own 

11 number, that's fine as well, but I have to do the math. I'm 

12 responsible for it. So I need to sit down and put our heads 

13 together and do that. So I can't say I'm inclined to grant 

14 the motion, but it's worth a look. 

15 MS. ALLEN: Well, but --

16 THE COURT: It's worth a look. 

17 MS. ALLEN: -- part of the -- are you -- you're just 

18 talking about the child's --

19 THE COURT: Yeah. 

20 MS. ALLEN: -- re recal --

21 THE COURT: What I'm looking at -- yeah, for the 

22 child support. 

23 MS. ALLEN: Not the --

24 THE COURT: As far as the child support, it is 
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1 was an issue. He had a pending motion. Whatever Sanchez --

2 I'm sorry, O'Malley wrote in her court minutes, even though 

3 it's omitted in the court minutes, he had a pending motion 

4 before me still at that time. We knew he lost his job in 

5 2014. They settled with O'Malley in August 2015 and it was 

6 still up in the air. So it doesn't say you closed the door on 

7 it and then, you know, and it -- we've talked about it so many 

8 times. I think there's no problems with the procedural due 

9 process and the notice issue here that this was going to be 

10 prepared for for trial. 

11 MS. ALLEN: What about the --

12 THE COURT: We had this long --

13 MS. ALLEN: the stay on the collection on the 

14 judgment for the PERS? The Court 

15 THE COURT: According --

16 MS. ALLEN: state --

17 THE COURT: to the rules, I made a stay of the 

18 collection --

19 MS. ALLEN: Yeah. 

20 THE COURT: with a 350 payment, otherwise he 

21 won't be able to pay her -- his bills and we had a long 

22 discussion about 

23 MS. ALLEN: Yes. 

24 THE COURT: -- what's her budget and his budget. 
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1 Mr. Page is taking the position that once you get a money 

2 judgment, and this is a division money judgment, not in the 

3 nature of support, that becomes below nature of support. So I 

4 want to make sure the support gets paid first. And then you 

5 got to look at the bills, okay, and then if it's going to 

6 result in the -- in the matter of nature of public policy that 

7 a wage garnishment happens on his paycheck. He could face 

8 eviction. He cannot be able to buy groceries. Theoretically, 

9 okay. If the law is the law and it says he'll collect, they 

10 can't take out more than 50 percent of your paycheck. They 

11 will lien your house. I don't even think he -- I don't know 

12 if he has a house. 

13 MS. ALLEN: No. 

14 THE COURT: They will do all of those things that 

15 you do for execution. 

16 MS. ALLEN: In addition to the fact that I believe 

17 employment with the county or the city 

18 THE COURT: And you cited --

19 MS. ALLEN: if you have a wage garnishment, it 

20 can get your terminated. 

21 THE COURT: There's -- I don't know if it's a 

22 specific rule or not rule or not if a judge has the 

23 authority. If you feel that I do not have authority staying 

24 executions of judgment because I've ordered -- a lot of judges 
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1 order it, make a hundred a month, won't charge interest as 

2 long as you pay on time. If not, then you can you're more 

3 than 30 days -- days late, go get the -- go -- go execute 

4 under the law. Take up the 50 percent of the paycheck. Okay. 

5 If this -- this conflicts, it's the same concept. I'm 

6 putting him on installment payment plans. 

7 But yeah, her competing consideration is this is 

8 going to, balloon out and I don't know if I'm going to live 

9 long enough to see that money that I've been entitled to from 

10 the day you retired and this is the impact of why we're 

11 talking about a new appeal case of the supreme court. 

12 That's --

13 MS. ALLEN: Absolutely. 

14 THE COURT: -- never been decided on. 

15 MS. ALLEN: Absolutely. 

16 MR. PAGE: Also, there's the retirement benefits 

17 going forward. And yes, she is -- the more he works, the 

18 longer she suffers, because this is her community property. 

19 THE COURT: Yeah, I'm not 

20 MR. PAGE: It belongs to her. 

21 THE COURT: There is no --

22 MR. PAGE: We can't take it away from her. 

23 THE COURT: good argument. The constable, other 

24 cases, they've taken out $38,000 from a bank account and 
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1 people are like that's my savings. They come in here and they 

2 fight about, you know, and then they settled out of court, but 

3 it's -- it -- it's a harsh result, either way. They -- it's 

4 catch 22. It's a catch 22 

5 MS. ALLEN: Which is why I believe that --

6 THE COURT: for both of them. 

7 MS. ALLEN: there needs to be 

8 THE COURT: Trust me. 

9 MS. ALLEN: -- some sort of --

10 THE COURT: I mean --

11 MS. ALLEN: decision. 

12 THE COURT: yeah, I'd like to get her -- get her 

13 what -- there is -- do for her, but then I can't -- you know, 

14 he can't up --

15 MS. ALLEN: On the street. 

16 THE COURT: Exactly. 

17 MR. PAGE: He can -- he can start taking his 

18 retirement. He can take a different job. There are choices 

19 available to him. 

20 MS. ALLEN: You can't force someone to retire. 

21 THE COURT: That's involuntary servitude to force 

22 him to --

23 MS. ALLEN: Yeah. 

24 THE COURT: -- get a second job. 
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1 MS. ALLEN: No. 

2 MR. PAGE: It's 

3 THE COURT: We're dealing with the law. 

4 MR. PAGE: It's not involuntary --

5 THE COURT: Right. 

6 MR. PAGE: -- servitude. It --

7 MS. ALLEN: It is. 

8 MR. PAGE: But she is entitled to her portion of the 

9 community property. That is an absolute right. 

10 MS. ALLEN: Yeah. 

11 THE COURT: Right now --

12 MS. ALLEN: Maybe he has an absolute right to have 

13 his job. 

14 THE COURT: When we come back, we'll -- we'll have 

15 time. If you want to do further briefing, if you tell me I'm 

16 making an error on the law saying I don't have the discretion 

17 to do the stay of execution, judgment is a property judgment, 

18 it's a judgment, and then they will have to either file any 

19 kind of emergency writ or something. But right now, I'm 

20 leaning towards that I have the authority to do the payment 

21 plans. But not I don't know how to make room for the child 

22 support. He knows he's got to pay that off the top whether 

23 his bills get paid or not. I -- that's my policy. You got to 

24 pay the child support for --
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1 MS. ALLEN: Is the -- is it possible the Court has 

2 maybe the 13th or 14th available 

3 THE COURT: Of April? You're talking about Thursday 

4 or Friday? 

5 MS. ALLEN: Fridays are usually a little better for 

6 me. 

7 THE COURT: Yeah. 

8 MS. ALLEN: I don't tend to have court on Fridays at 

9 the RJC. 

10 MR. PAGE: There is -- my client has plans for 

11 Friday because that's when Spring Break starts. They are 

12 going to 

13 THE COURT: Is that when Spring Break starts? 

14 MR. PAGE: be traveling. 

15 MS. KILGORE: For the whole next week we will not be 

16 here. 

17 MS. ALLEN: Spring Break's the 10th to the 14th. 

18 THE COURT: So you said -- the 13th you said is a 

19 Thursday? 

20 MS. ALLEN: Yes. 

21 MR. PAGE: 13th can possibly work. 

22 THE COURT: My secretary is saying April 18th at 

23 1:30, but that's your trial. 

24 MS. ALLEN: And --
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1 THE COURT: Your criminal trial. 

2 THE COURT: you can set it, but with the 

3 understanding that if if --

4 THE COURT: No. No. No. What -- I'm -- hang on. 

5 Let me IM her back. I'm thinking there was just something 

6 I saw here, the 12th, 11th -- the 12th? Well, there's trial 

7 is there. No, the 13th. 

8 MS. ALLEN: I can do the 12th or the 13th. 

9 THE COURT: The 13th. 

10 MS. ALLEN: In the afternoon but the afternoon. 

11 THE COURT: What is 4/13? Hang on. What do I have 

12 on the 13th? What do I have on the 13th? I have 

13 MR. PAGE: I'm sorry, but Your Honor --

14 THE COURT: So the --

15 MR. PAGE: -- my -- my -- Your Honor, my client just 

16 told me she's going to be gone the week of the 10th through 

17 the 14th. 

18 MS. ALLEN: That's Spring Break. 

19 THE COURT: I just had that date -- that date --

20 that trial went off. I had the date. Gone, like out of town? 

21 MS. KILGORE: Yes. We already have plans and -- and 

22 we have paid for everything for the kids. 

23 THE COURT: You know what, I got to have Susanna get 

24 with you guys. Does she have your cell phone numbers? 
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1 MR. PAGE: Yeah. 

2 MS. ALLEN: Yeah. 

3 MR. PAGE: She has mine. 

4 MS. ALLEN: I'm assuming. 

5 THE COURT: I don't have time. I -- she's going to 

6 finagle a date for you guys, find you at least a two hour slot 

7 somewhere. 

8 MS. ALLEN: And just so the Court knows, just so you 

9 know, I leave the 6th and come back the 10th. 

10 THE COURT: 6th through 10 is a no for Ms. Allen. 

11 MS. ALLEN: And I mean 

12 THE COURT: 10 through 14 is a no for Mom. How 

13 about you, Dad? 

14 MR. KILGORE: I'm open, Your Honor. 

15 THE COURT: You're working. 

16 MS. ALLEN: Here's the thing. 

17 THE COURT: Okay. 

18 MS. ALLEN: If -- if --

19 THE COURT: He's just 

20 MS. ALLEN: I mean 

21 THE COURT: like me. I'm just working. 

22 MS. ALLEN: if we find something --

23 THE COURT: Yeah. 

24 MS. ALLEN: -- if she calls me and finds something, 
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1 even if I'm in a jury trial, I can talk to Kephart. 

2 THE COURT: This is what happens. 

3 MS. ALLEN: I can talk to him and I can potentially 

4 finagle like an hour to an hour and a half, like an extra long 

5 lunch --

6 THE COURT: Tell you what. 

7 MS. ALLEN: -- or something like that. 

8 THE COURT: Save -- I'm going to tell Susanna save 

9 4/18. If your child goes off on the 17th, we got 24 hours to 

10 ask you guys to come in. 

11 MS. ALLEN: That's -- I'm -- let me 

12 THE COURT: And call your clients. 

13 MS. ALLEN: -- see, the 18th? Oh, sorry. 

14 THE COURT: Save 4/18 afternoon, right? 

15 MS. ALLEN: Yeah. 

16 THE COURT: I'll have Susanna save it. By the 7 --

17 if the 17th you know, got to give -- call the parents. 

18 MS. ALLEN: And honestly, I should -- in theory, I 

19 should know by the 12th. That's our calendar call date. It's 

20 a -- the Wednesday before. If you -- I'll tell you this. If 

21 the Court -- if you can -- if you can get something on the 

22 19th towards the morning time, Bill Kephart has criminal 

23 calendars Mondays and Wednesdays and they go forever. He 

24 won't start until 1:00 o'clock on Monday and Wednesday. 
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1 THE COURT: What did you say again, on the 19th? 

2 MS. ALLEN: On the 19th, if you can do something in 

3 the morning, I could -- you know, or -- because he -- his 

4 criminal calendar --

s THE COURT: Oh, he starts later? 

6 MS. ALLEN: -- it -- I think his normal motion 

7 calendar goes 

8 THE COURT: Yeah, but you got to hop on over to 

9 another building. I don't want you to do that. Susanna will 

10 tell you -- I said save 4/18 in the afternoon. 

11 MS. ALLEN: Okay. 

12 THE COURT: Your trial criminal trial might not 

13 go. I told her to put a tickler on her calendar to call you 

14 on 4/12 because you will know by then. 

15 MS. ALLEN: I should know by then. 

16 THE COURT: On -- on the availability. Oh, 4/17 is 

17 available at 1:30. So 4/17 at 1:30, 4/18 at 1:30 

18 MS. ALLEN: Okay. 

19 THE COURT: is available by some miracle. 

20 MS. ALLEN: If my trial doesn't --

21 THE COURT: It's my double stack. But you can be 

22 the stack one. I have a stack two. I can make them a stack 

23 one later. 

24 MS. ALLEN: Okay. 
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1 THE COURT: So 

2 MS. ALLEN: So in the interim --

3 THE COURT: Let's work with that. 4/17 and 4/18, 

4 both at 1:30, save. 

5 MS. ALLEN: And Your Honor, and in the interim 

6 because the D.A. Family Support is going to continue 

7 THE COURT: I'll have her ask you on 4/12. 

8 MS. ALLEN: Yeah. They're going to continue the 

9 1500, so my client -- the PERS payment is putting the money 

10 and minus that amount. So he's putting 205 which is the 350 

11 minus what the D.A. is taking on top of that. Does that make 

12 sense? 

13 THE COURT: What's your -- basically your bottom 

14 line request here? Do you need to shave a few hundred off 

15 because it's not --

16 MS. ALLEN: No. No. No. What I'm saying is the 

17 D.A. is taking 1500 out of -- out of his paycheck and it's 

18 over 

19 THE COURT: It's been always 1500 --

20 MS. ALLEN: Right. 

21 THE COURT: -- for the last --

22 MS. ALLEN: But if that's over 

23 THE COURT: like I can remember. 

24 MS. ALLEN: 200 -- what, 200 or --
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1 MR. KILGORE: Yes. 

2 THE COURT: 1292 is 

3 MS. ALLEN: Right. 

4 THE COURT: -- 208. 

5 MS. ALLEN: 208. So he's putting -- instead of 

6 putting the full 350 in, he's subtracting 

7 THE COURT: The difference. 

8 MS. ALLEN: -- he's subtracting 

9 THE COURT: 208. 

10 MS. ALLEN: -- the -- the difference. 

11 THE COURT: 142 you're putting ln her account? 

12 MR. KILGORE: 205 is what I've been --

13 THE COURT: It's 1500, right? You're supposed to 

14 pay 1292, right? You got an extra 208 and then 350 is a 

15 hundred and forty-two difference. 

16 MR. KILGORE: Okay. 

17 MR. PAGE: My client advises that he's not doing so. 

18 He's only put in one payment of $400; therefore, she alleges 

19 that he's making a potential misrepresen -- representation of 

20 facts. 

21 THE COURT: I'll be honest with you, mixing with the 

22 child support with the 350, it should be 350, 350, 350. 

23 MS. ALLEN: I have the receipts. 

24 THE COURT: Yeah. 
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1 MS. ALLEN: I have it on my bank account. 

2 THE COURT: I can make her refund you that 208 out 

3 of that 1500 and put it back in your account. 

4 MR. KILGORE: Okay. That's fine. 

5 THE COURT: Yeah, I want to keep a straight 

6 accounting since we're only a few months into this. Let's 

7 stop that. I want to see 350 and I want you to refund him 

8 208. 

9 MS. KILGORE: He hasn't --

10 THE COURT: If you're getting 1500 --

11 MR. PAGE: He hasn't paid. 

12 MS. KILGORE: He hasn't made the payments. One week 

13 ago because he always does it right before we go to --

14 MR. PAGE: Stand. 

15 MS. KILGORE: -- court -- oh, sorry. One week 

16 ago --

17 THE COURT: I can listen to that all that. I just 

18 need to make sure we 

19 MS. KILGORE: Yeah, well, I have it on my cal -- one 

20 week ago he put in 400. I can show you my bank account 

21 because I made a special account. 

22 THE COURT: And he's probably way ahead. 

23 MS. KILGORE: $400. So he's not making monthly 

24 payments or whatever he's claiming. 
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1 MR. PAGE: It's a material misrepresentation 

2 THE COURT: This was to be 

3 MR. PAGE: -- of fact. 

4 THE COURT: -- effective 

5 MS. KILGORE: January. 

6 THE COURT: -- January. So January, take out -- if 

7 they have proof they took out 1500, you got to put 350 in her 

8 account, supposed to, and then you got to refund him back 208. 

9 MS. KILGORE: That's fine. If he --

10 THE COURT: Okay. 

11 MS. KILGORE: -- does that, I will. 

12 THE COURT: And then you guys should just be able to 

13 have your attorneys square away the accounting and tell you 

14 guys where you're at and then get squared away for it's end 

15 of March. Get squared away for April. And then sign an 

16 agreement together saying this is what we agreed to, we're 

17 squared away, Judge told Dad do 350 from now on and then you 

18 got to put 350 -- 208 in his account and put it back there. 

19 So we have perfect accounting. 

20 MS. KILGORE: And that's only if he pays me. 

21 MR. PAGE: Which doesn't cover the interest on the 

22 judgment. 

23 THE COURT: Okay. Passed the matter then. We're 

24 going to -- we're -- we'll -- we'll rule on the motion until I 
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1 figure out what the numbers will be. It might be plus or 

2 minus. I don't know. 

3 (PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 11:24:44) 

4 * * * * * * 

5 ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and 

6 correctly transcribed the digital proceedings in the above-

7 entitled case to the best of my ability. 
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was also held December I, 2016. !)e;:fendant, Eleni Kilgore, was present and v.a 

2 l represented hy and through her counsel, Fn:d Page, Esq. Plaintifi~ Richar 

3 I 
Kilgore, was present and was represented by and through his counsel. Bdsy Alkn 

~ ! Esq. The Coun having considered the 1:xhibits admitted and the testimony 

(J) 
" j presented hereby enters the following orders. 

Fll'tDINGS OF FACT 

I. Dcfcm.Jant Eleni Kilgore (hereinafler ··Eleni"'), and Plaintiff. Richar 
;11 I 

II 

I~ ; 992. in Las Vegas. Nevada. 

2. When Ekni and Richard were married to each other that Richard v.a. 

1~ employed by lhc Clark County Courts as Marshal. 

\ 16 
3. The parties have two r~m:iining minor children, the issue of rh9 

:: marnagc. Niclwlos Kilgor< (hcrcmali<r ··Nicholas•1. burn June 29. 2000. an1 

''' Richard Boyd Kilgore (hereinafter .. Ritchie"), born June 29, 2000. j 
2() 

4. The stipulaled Decree of Divorce in this matter was filed \-larch I 3 
'I 

l 
2~ I 2013. ln lhc stipulated Decree llf Divon.:c, the panics were ordered to have join 

:!• 
physical and joint kgal cu~tody of those l\\o remaining minor children. 

5. In th!! Decree, the Richard's initial child support obligation for join 

21
' physical custody of the two minor children. Nil.:holas and Ritchie. was sc:l a 

Sl.275 per month commencing l\o\cmb..:r I, 2012. As of March 13, 2013, thedac 
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the Del:n~c: of Divorce was fikd. Richard"s child support am:ars were $1.398. 

However. there \vas no additional installment payment in the Decree for the arrear: 

on top of the Sl.275 . 
.j 

6. In the Decree of Divorct:. thc panies agreed to divide the PERS 

b 
defined bcm:iit plan in Richard's pursuunl to the time rule formula. 

7. The ~urvivor bendkiary \vas never mentioned in the Decree ol 

Divorce. 

8. After the Decree or Divorce i.vas entered, Richard m:vcr made anyj 
11 

.:: payments to Elt:ni for her sh~m: of the PERS ddined b<:ndit p;an in his name. 

9. In early October 2014. Richard was tenninated from his position as 
11 

1.5 Marshal at the Las Vegas Municipal Courts. 

16 
lO. On October 14, 2014. Richard tiled a Motion to modify child support. \ 

17 

IR 11 
I l. On November 4. 2014. Eleni tikd an Opposition and a Countermotion 

19 ·to cban~c cu~todv. ' - ~ 
20 

12. On March l 0. 2015. Eleni made a formal request in a Brief filed wit 
21 I 
22 the Court that she begin receiving her share of the PERS defined benefit plan in! 

I 

I 
l1 ! 
- ,

1 
Rid1ard"s name because h~ has reached his first eligibility for retirement. I 

2~ ! I 
:_5 

1! 13. On !\1arch IO. 2015. Ekni also made a fomrnl request in a Brief tile~ 
2

(· ·with the Court that she recdves the Survivor·s Benefit for the PF.RS define 
2; I 

benefit plan in Richard's name as that item was never addressed in the Decree t) 
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Divorce. Lleni additionally made a request to divide the omitted \'acation/sick pay 

that was never addressed in the Decree of Divorce. 

14. Tht.: panics continued to shan.: joint physical custody of Nicholas an 

Ritchie until July 2015. 

15. Comm1.:m:ing August 20 IS. Eleni had primary phy~ical custody o 

~ Nicholas. Richard \\t>uld have to pay child support to Eleni for primary physica 

11 custody of Nicholas al I 8 percent of his gross monthly income pursuant to NRS 
:o 

125B.070. 
II 

1

' 16. Eleni and Richard continued to maintain joint physical custody ol 

Ritchie. Because Richard was sti!I unemployed, Eleni would have to pay chi! 
14 

:~ suppon to Richard. Eleni would have to pay child support to Richard for Ritchie a 

lb 
18 percent of her income and Richard would ha\'c to pay child support to Eh::ni fo 

IK 
Ritchie at 18 percent of his gross monthly income \\. ith the person with the highc 

19 income paying the difference to the person with the lower income subject to ch 

~I 
caps set forth in NRS 12513.070 as sd fonh in Wri~ht v. Osburn, infra. as modific 

2~ by Wesley v. Fosler. infra. 

l' -" 17. Marshal S. Willick. Esq. was gualifo:d as an expert rt:gan!in~ 

15 n:tin:ment benefits and testified. Mr. Willick testified to the following: 

a. Ueni ·s rl!tin:ment as a Clark County School District teacher ha. 

different standard than docs police/lire. 

4 of:? l 
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l i 

(1 

I 
Iii i 

II 

I' 

14 

l'I 

10 

!I 

27 

i 
I 

I 
11 

b. Eleni was entitled to receive a portion of the retirement pay 

Richar<l·s mum: upon his lirsl digibility lo retire. 

c. The cases of Gemma v. Genmw, Fondi v. Fondi, Sertic v. Sertic. an 

Wo(IJ \'. Wolf/: stand for tht: proposition normal date for receipt ti 

retirement benefits by the nonv.orking spouse is the first eligibility fo 

retin:menl n:gardlt'SS if the employee decides lo rt:tire 

d. ·1 hat rule was modifit::d slightly in Henson v. Henson. the Suprem 

Court wac; willing to look at California rule in order accually a Ihm 

payments have to be provided for in the underlying court order or fil 

a motion that requesting pay1m:nt at that time. Under Henson. rh 

non-employee spouse's payments begin al the time of the request a 

the time if the employee spouse could have retired. 

e. As a result of Henson. eligibility now for the non-employee spuus 

begins at order or court motion. 

f That there arc no retroactive henefits under the current law as th 

!lenson opinion does noc allow for n.:troaccivcly. 

g. Abscnc an order. one the date one tiles a motion asking for bcnctiL 

commences rhe right to receive those retirement benefits. As soon a 

the Eleni requests Richard is obligawd to hegin making payments. 

5 of2 I 
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h. Onci.: the non-employee spouse starts receiving money. the non 

employee spouse is taxed on il. Under the current law the receipt ol 

retirement benefit income is tn.:ated as normal income. 
~ 

I. Then: was designation of survivor beneficiary in the Decree ot 

i) I Divorce. The lack of the designation of a .survivor beneficiary woul 

)! indicate an omitted asset. The survivor beneficiary is a valuabl 

') component of the retirement. There is no other meaning of ' 
JO 

: : I 
survivorship interest of anything other than a property interc:sl. Th 

consequence of Eleni not being designated as a survivor beneficiary i 

p 

that if Richard dies. and Eleni is nol designated as a beneficiary al 
I~ 

15 benefits stop. 

lb l 
1- 11 

18. Richard testified that the vacation/sick time was never discusst:d an 

18 
I v.as omitted from the Decree of Dirnrct!. Richard further testified on October 17 

19 

21 

2:> 

, . 
• J 

2014. that he was tenninated from the City of Las Vegas. Richard attempted t 

claim at the cvidcntiary hearing that h~ was not eligible to retire without early 

retirement penalty when he \vas terminalc<l. 

19. Ril.:hard testified that if he continued working that Eleni will no 

receive any monie~ from PERS directly. Richard further testified that he agrl!~ 

2
'' that pursuant to 1he terms of the Decree of Divorce that Eleni's intert!St in th 

1') 

' PERS pension in his name was community property. 
2X 
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20. Richard additional Iv tesli tied that bv him continuing to work that h . . 

\\as not allowing Eleni to receive her share of her community property and as Ion 

, as hi! kept working. PERS would not pay Eleni. 

2 l. Richard testified that because will not pay Eleni any monies until h 

retires he was in sole control as to if and when Eleni would get paid. 

22. Richard was reinstated with the City of Las Vegas eHective Janual) 

9 2016. 
10 

II 
23. Sonya Hellwinkc; testified as the Director of Employe~ an 

12 Produ1.:tion Servi1.:es for Nevada PERS. \.1s. Hellwinkel testified that her dutie· 

w1.:re to oversee the \H>rk. completed by pension, respond to subpoena requests fo 
I~ 

15 records. and determine if PERS is compliant \Vith PERS policies. Ms. Hcllwinkcl 

16 
also testified as tu the following: 

17 

I~ 
a. PERS determines whether one is eligible to retire and to decermini; i 

19 an employee is police/fire. 

Pl'R~ b. That she has access to retirement benefit information for 
21 

emplO) et:s. ( 

c. rhat she had revie\\ed the records for Richard and that Richard wa 
2l 

25 I 
enrolled in the system May 8. 1989. and at the time enrolled Richar 

!o was part of police/fire and that Richard is still part of police/fire . 

.'X 
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d. 

e. 

I. 

\.1cmbcrs of police/fire eligihle to retire after .20 years at age 50 with 

an unreduced benefit and that Richard has 20 years in with the Stat 

uf Nevada. 
' 

A rl.'vicw of the n.:cords in her possession showed that Richarl
1 

achieved the 20 year mark in June 2009. 

Members of police/lire able to retire with an unreduced bcndit al ag9 
I 

50 wi(h 20 years of service. meaning that Richard would not hav 

sufti:rcd an; early retirement penalty by retiring now. 

g. Richard Lumed age 50 on April 20. 2011. 

h. Pursuant to Chapter 286, Richard was eligible for an unrcduce 

retirement benefit on April 20. 201 I as he was 50 years of age an, 
had 20 years nf service. 

I 

1. Huvrcvcr. PERS will not pay a retirement benefit to the nonworkin )l 

directly prior to the working spouse retiring. 

J. If a working spouse decides to work until the day they die then PER 

' ' \.,·ill never make a payment to the nonworking spouse. If that st:cnari9 

occurs. the non-working spous~ never receives a payment from PLRS. 

PERS to Eleni for her share of the retirement. 

8 uf21 
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I. The only way for Elem to get her share the retirement income strca~ 
form Richard is for her is tu get 1t from him direct!). \ 

rn. As long as Richard continues to work, PERS will nor make any 

payments to Eleni. Richard must make payments to Eleni. 

n. PERS is unable to pay benetics until Richard retires. 

o. Eleni is part or the Clark County School District. 

'l p. As a regular member Eleni would tirst be eligible to retire at age 60 o 
IL 

II 
aft.er 30 years of si.;n ice with an unreduced benefit. 

I~ q. for 30 years o! service Eleni would be first eligible for retirement i 
I ~ 

2023 if there were no breaks in service. 
I~ 

15 24. There were lengthy discussions in the post.trial hearings as to hov. 

1(1 

Richard would pay Eleni her community interest ponion of his PERS as Richar 

18 
was eligible to retire \\ ithoul carly n:tiremerll penally when the Decree was cntere 

l'I in March 2013 although Richan] presently i.:ontinui.:s to work full-time and has nn 

20 

I yet actuall} retired. Eleni's portion wa" of the PERS retirement in Richard's nam 
21 ' 

I 
2~ 1 was c<ilculated lo be $2,455 per month retroactive to March 2015, when Eleni' 

:~ -~ 

Motion •was filed. 
~,1 I 

25. For the n;lcvant time period established at trial. the total accrued an 

~ 6 owing to Eleni is $54,003.62 principal plus $2,572,14 of pre-judgment interest fo 

a grand total of $56.575.76. Said amount should be reduced to judgment an 

Q uf2 I 

! 
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collectible by any !awfUI means. Howe\cr. execution on Richard"s paychecks i 

l : ! stayed and instead, due to the linancial conditions of the parties explored in-dept! 

4 
! at the hearings, Richard should pay Eleni $350.00 per month from January 20 I , 

I 

5 \ fon, ard into her Chase bank account. Richard should direct deposit $175 .00 o 
( 

(1 I 

·; Lhi;: 15th and $175 on the last da) of every month. 

26. ShoulJ any of these Findings of Fact be mort: properly construed a. 

'
1 

' Conclusions of Law they should be construed as such. 
l(J 

\I 

12 

14 

l 5 

I" 

Ill 

211 

21 

,, 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

I. NRS I 25C.0035 states in pcninenl pan: 

I. In any action for determining physical custody of a minor child, 
the sole consi<lcracion of the <.:ourt is the best interest of the child. If it 
appears to the c.:ourt that joint physical custody would be in the best 
interest of thl.! child. the i.:ourt may grant physical custody to the parties 
jointlv . 

.., Prefrrencc must not be given to either parent for the sole reason 
Lhat lhc parent is th<.: mother or the father of the child. 

3. The court shall award physical custody in the following order of 
preference unless in a particular case the best interest of the child requires 
otherwise: 

(a) To both parents jointly pursuant to \IRS I ~)C.0025 or to either 
pun:nt pursuant to ~RS l 25COO). If the court does not enter an order 
av .. ar<ling joint physical cu~tody of a child after either parent has applied 
for joint ph)sical custody. the court shall state in its decision the reason 
for its d~nial of the parent's applicalion. 

( b) lo a person or pl..!rsons in whose home the child has been living 
and \\here the child has had a wholesome and stable environment. 

(c) To any person related within the tilth degree of consanguinity to 
the .:hild \\hom the court finds suitable and ahle to provide proper care 
and guidance for the \:hild. regardless of whether the relative resides 
within this State. 

10 of21 
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15 

1(1 

17 

iX 

4. Richard should pay child support pursuant to 1\iRS 1258.070 fo 

Nicholas at 18 percent of his gross monthly income subject lo any caps . 

.!7 
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5. Child support shoulc be: ordered pursuant to NRS 1258.070 an 

Wright v Osburn. 1 
and as modified by Wesley v. Foster.~ 

6. Under N RS 123 .130. all property acquired after marriage is presume 

to be community propcny unless there is a pre or post-nuptial agreement, th 

(1 

property was acquired by gill. award of personal injury damages or acquired by 

x gill or devise, and the rents issues and profits thereof. 

9 7. Under NRS 123.220. all property other than property owned by befor 
w 

II 
marriage, and that acquired by afterwards by gift. bequest, devise, descent or hy an 

1~ •award for personal injury damages. with the rents. issues and pro tits thereof. i · 

1 ~ 

community property unless othernrise provided by, an agreement in writin 
14 

15 hetween the spouses. a decree of separate maintenance. or if divided pursuant l 

16 
!\IRS 123.259. a spouse being institutionalized. 

I 7 

I~ 
8. Llndcr NRS \25.lSO(l)(b). community propert)- shall, to be exten 

19 practicahle. be divided equally. 

9. The defined benefits plan with Nevada PERS in Richard's name i, 
~I 

22 community propeny. 
,, 
--' 

i 0. At the time the Decree of Divorce was entered th~t no compel I in 

n:ason ,,..as put forth for there to be an unequal division of community prop~rty. 

1 l l 4 Ne•. l 367. 970 P.2d I 07 l { 1998) 
.28 

c I Ill Nev. 110. 65 P.3d 251 (2003) 
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11. The time for appealing the Decree of Divorce passed 30 days after th 

1 Notice of Entrv of Decree of Divorce was st:rved. 
' -I 

1 

~ I 
12. Jn Senic v. Sertic,J the Supreme Court ordered thac the "norma 

i distribution of a spousal share of a relin:ment is to be upon first eligibility !'o 

retirement. and that if a worker does not retire at first eligibilily, the worker mus 

ll pay th~ spouse whatever the spouse would have received ifl.he worker did retire a 
1 

9 that time:· 
Ill 

13. NRS 125.150 was amended to include authority a party may file· 

1:. post-judgment motion to obtain the division of omitted community property assets 

omitted from the Decree. 
I~ I 

account and the omitte~ 
16 

vacation1sick time were never di5cussed or considered. Eleni should be entitled. a. 

15 14. The omitted deterred compensation 

Ii 

IK 
1 a matter of lm.v. to one-half of Lhe time rule portion of the accumulated vacatiot 

19 \and sick pay from the date of marriage through March 13, 2013. 

15. Attorney's fees may be awarded under NRS 125.040. NRS 18.010 
21 \ 

~] and Brzm=ell v. Golden Gate Na1ional Bank.~ 

I 6. Should any of these Conclusions of Law be more properly construe 

as being Findings a Fact, the} should be construed as such. 

·'lll '.\cv.1194,9011'.2d 148(1995) 

4 85 'iev. 345. 455 P.2d 31 (1969) 
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ORDERS 

2 THE COURT HEREBY ORDERS as follows: 

I. Eleni shall have pcnnancnt primal)' physical custody of Nicholas, born Jun 

' 29. 2000 effo1.:tive August 2015. 

., 
~· The parties stipulated to joint physical custody of Richard, Jr. born, June 29 

7 

II 2000. 

'
1 3. Within 30 days. Nicholas is referred to either Nicholas Ponzo or Keish 

Ill 

II 
Wei ford. for reunification with Richard. He shall pay 65 percent of the fees, Elen· 

12 shall pay 35 percent of the fees. 

13 
4. Nicholas is to go back to his therapist before beginning reunification. 

14 

1s 5. Beginning December 20)4. Eleni's child suppon was set at $970.00 pe 

I 
Ii' 
" month based on joint physical custody of both children, using Wright vs Osbor1 

JR minus $2 J 3 .00 per month for health insurance premiums. for a total of $757 .00 pc I 
19 month, through January 2016, for a grand total of$9,84l.OO. 
2U 

21 
1

6. Beginning January 2016. Richard·s child support for Nicholas was set a 

22 
1 

$806.00 per month, plus $266.00 per month for joint physical custody of Richard 

2.1 
Jr .. plus $220.00 per momh for health insurance premiums allocable to the mino 

24 

~ 5 children, for a total of$L,292.00 per month. 

~: 7. Beginning July 2016, Richard's child suppon for Nicholas was set a1I 

$8:!0.00 per month, plus $266.00 per month for joint physical custody of Ritchie 
28 

I 
I 
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plus $220.00 per month for hea!Lh insurance premiums, allocable to the mino 

children for a total of $L306.00 per month. The Court finds that the amount n 

child support Richard is ordered to pay is in conformance with NRS I 258.070. 

8. Eleni shall provide proof the hc::alth insurance costs for the minor children. 

b 
9. Counsel is to requ~l a District Attom~y audit forthwith. 

H I 0. Richard shall rccciw a credit of $9,841.00 for December 2014 to Dcccmbc 

9 2015. 
10 

II 
l l. Richard sha:I receive a cn:dit of $2.294. for overpayments of child suppo 

I~ for 2() \ 6. 

12. Commencing January 2017 fornard, all District Attorney wage withholdin 
I~ 

15 shall cc::as1.:. Richard shall direct deposit onc-h.alf of the current child support o 

1 ~ \ th<.: 15th and last day of each month into Eleni's Chase bank account. Eleni shal 

'.~ I set up this separate .Chase bank account and provide the bank account number to 
•o I 

Richard via Our Family Wizard. 
20 

I 3. The parties will equally divide the costs of any Qualified Domcslil: Rdalion.' 

22 Orders. 

)' -·' 

15 

14. 

I S. 

The $I 0.000.00 w.x debt is washed out. 

Eleni shall receive no offset/no value for the fur coat and dresses. 

I 

,, Eleni shall file an Order to Shmv Cause to Richard for the:: non-payment o~ 16. 

-' 

retin.:mcnt payment for 2016. Sanctions are to he Jelcnnincu. 
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17. Richard shall walk-through an Order \o lift the District Attorney's driver' 

license suspension, as of today there arc zero (0) arrears. Eleni shall have 24 hour. 

to review the Order. 
~ i 

i 
, i 18. Eleni's PERS ~ill not be eligible until 2023. at the earliest. The Cour 

11 I i cannot force reciprocal Survivor Beneficiaries unless the parties stipulate to that 
J I 

Eleni can pay for a Life Insurance Policy for rctiremcnc payments and vice versa. 

19. Richard's share of the unreimburscd medical expenses is $3,202.00. 
10 

20. For the relevant time period established at trial for the PERS retiremen 
ti 

,, benetits in Richard"s name th<it should have been paid to Eleni. the total accrue 

I J 

1 and owing to Ekni is $54.003.62 principal plus $2.572.14 of pre-judgment intcres 
14 

15 for a grand total of $56.575.76. Said amount is reduced to judgment an 

Ill ! collectible by any la\vful means. However, execution on Richard's paychecks i 
17 

18 
sta~ed and Richard shall pay Eleni $350.00 pt:r month from January 2017 foruar 

l'l into her Chase bank account. Richard shall direct deposit Sl75.00 on the 15th an 
!O 

21 
$175 on the last day l)f evl!ry mooch. 

22 21. Counsd shall have ongoing authority to conduct limited discovery an 
i 

~-
1 

·confer jointly with the PERS representative. currently Ms. Sonya Helwinkle. fo~ 
~~ I ·1 

I 

15 ongoing information on Richard's PERS and infonnation when Richard actual!)~ 

lb retires. 
' .!i j 

.?8 
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.. --------- - . - --·-- _._ -·-. 

22. Richard's counsel. shail submit an addendum to the Order from th 

December 1. 2016. hearing lilied '"Vacation/Sick Pay Calculation Sheet' 

1 

delineating the correct amount calculated as to Richard's vacation and sick lcav 

t ! 1m;asurcd at the time of the divorce. not hased on rhe exhibit produced at tht: trial 
I 

6 
which showed tht> amount as of the time that Richard was terminaled fron 

l 

x ! employmcnl for misconduct. The Court makes this Addendum to Order sua spam 

" I to correct the calculation established at trial. The correct calculation is as follows 
10 

11 
Richard's vacation pa) or I 07 hours plus sick time of 102.35 hours based on a 

1~ hourly wage of $41.25 totals $8,635.70 at the time of divorce. One-half i. 

13 ! $4.317.35 pre-tax and is owed to Eleni. Richard's entire $8,635.70 was cashed ou 
I~ 

1 ~ early and Richard had to pay taxes on the full amount. Therefore, Richard O\\e. 

16 j Fkni her one-hair of $8.635. 70 minus taxes that would have been attributed t 

17 ! 

111 
Eleni had she gotten paid out her half share at the time of the divorce. Richard an 

19 his attomcy shall produce proof of how much he was taxed on the $8,635.70, an 

half of the taxes shall be taken of Mom's 54.317 .35. The net amount shall then b 
21 

22 rr:dw.:~<l to judgment and collectible by any la\.vful means. 
I 

I :: I 23. Attorney's Fees arc bifurcated. Counsels an: to submit Brunze/1 Brids fo~ 

15 anomcy's kes. Attorney Page shall submit his Brief on December 2. 20 I 7 anJ 

!1> Attorney Allt:n shall submit ha Brief on December 30, 2017. 
~: I 

I .,4 I ,... . 
~K I 

Counsel shall be notifo:d of a Return Hearing date. 

I 
17 of21 



JA-001555 

CHILD CUSTODY l\OTICES 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the parties are subject to the prO\·ision: 

J 
of ]\jRS l 25C.065(l) and NRS 200.359. which provide: "lf custody has been 

established and the custodial parenl or a parent having joinl custody inlenus t 

move his residence lo a plai.:c outside of this stali.: and to lake the child with him. h 
7 

must, as soon as possibli.: and before the planned move. attempt to obtain th 

::: I written consent of the other parent to move the child from the state. If lhj 
noncustodial parent or other parent having joint custody refuses to give tha 

II 

1~ cons.:m. the parent planning the mon.~ shall. before he leaves the state \Vith lh~ 
i:; I 

child. petition the court for pem1ission to move the child. The failure of a parent tol 
l~ j 
1~ comply with the provisions of this section may be considered as a factor if 

"' ~hange of custody is rcquestc::d by the noncustodial parem or other parent hav in 
l 

I 7 

18 
joint wsto<ly:"" as well as NRS I2SC.045(6) \••hich provides: 

I'> 

~I 

,, 
-·' 

25 

PENAL TY FOR VIOLA TIO'J OF ORDER: THE ABDUCrlON. 
CONCEALMENT OR DETENTION or t\ CHILD IN VIOLATION OF THIS 
ORDER IS PUNISHABLE . AS A CATEGORY D FELONY. BY UP TO 6 
YEARS IN f>R!SON AS PROVIDED IN \IRS 193.130. NRS 200.359 provides 
that every pcr~on having a limited right of cu5tody to a child or any parent having 
no right of cuskxl) tl) the child who willfully detains. conceals or removes the 
..:hild from 1hc parcnl. guarJian ur ulhcr person having lawful custody or a right of 
\ isitation of the child in viulat.on of an ordcr of this court, or removes the child . 
. from lhc jurisdiction of the ..:ourt wilhou1 the consent of eilher the court or all 
persons who have the right 10 custody or visitation is subject to being punishi:d by 
imprisonment in the state prison for no\ less than I )·car nor more than 6 years. or 
hy a !inc of not less than $1.000 nor more than $5,000. or b) both fine: and 
imprison inent. 
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to NRS l 25C.045. the tcml. 

of the llaguc Convention or October 25. 1980, adopted by tbe 14th Session of th 

Hagui.: Conference on Priva\e International Law are applicable to lhe parties. 

~ : ~evada is hereby Lb:larcd the State, and the United States of America is herchy 

(i : declared the country. 0 r habitual residence or the child for the purposes of apply in 

the terms of the Haguc Convention as set forth <ibovc. 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that under the terms of the 
10 

II 
Kidnapping Prcvi.:ncion Act. 28 U.S.C. Sec. l 738A, and the Lnil(Jrm Chil 

r ~ Custody Jurisdiction Act, NRS 1251\.010 et seq .. the courts of Nevada hav 

:: ~=~:::,:::~~::i::il~u~:,i:::~
0

i: t:
1
;s ':':,«::,~:.~g ::s::~~rn o:e ::~:es'.::,:1 

I 

'" child. continuc:s to reside in this jurisdiction. . 
I" 

CHILD SUPPORT NOTICES 

NOTICE: IS HEREBY GIVE~ to both parties that the parent having th 

.? I 
child support obligation is sub_ject to NRS 125.450 and NRS 31A.020 through 

!! 311\.230. inclusive, regarding th~ immediutc \.\-ithholding or assignment of wages. 

2.:; 
! commissions or bonuses for payment o child support. whether current o 

~~ I 
~ 5 I delinquent. 

19 or21 



JA-001557 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to NRS 1258.145. eithc 

~ party may request that the Court review the child support obligation every thn.:c 

years or upon changed cin.:umstant:es 
~ I 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to NRS 1258.140 if ai~ 
I 

installment of an obligation to pay support for a child becomes delinquent, th~ 
R Court shall determine imcrcst upon the arrearagcs at a rate established pursuant tc 

'
1 NRS 99.040. from the time each amount became due. interest shall continue t 

10 

ll 
accrue on tht! amount ordered until it is paid. and additional attorney's fees must b 

12 allowed if required for collection . 
.. i 
I" l 

I~ 

:\OTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to NRS I 25B.095. if a~ 
I 

1, • installment of an obligation to pay suppon for a child becom1:s delinquent in th 

amount owed for one month's support, a 10% per annum penalty must be added to 
I~ 

/,. ( 

'I' Ill 

l'I I I ,' 

20 
I. 
' I I 

21 

12 i I / 

,. ( 
- l 

i I I 

!~ 

!S /// 

211 
! I 

~? 
I I / .' 
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-·~·--------

1 
the delinquent amount. 

DA TED this _2l_ day of July 20 I 7 

6 

1 Respectfully submined: 

11 PAGE LAW OFFICE 

10 

11 FRED PAGE, ESQ. 
! Nevada Bar No.: 6080 

12 
6145 Spring Mountain Road. Suite 20 I 

13 Las Vegas, Nevada 89146 

14 
Phone: (702) 469-3278 
E-mail: f page@pagelawoffices.com 

1 ~ Auorney for Defendant 

16 

17 

IS 

~1 

23 

Hj 

2S 

26 

!8 

Q. 
Nevada Bar No.: 6878 
P.O. Box 46991 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89114 
(702) 386-9700 
Email: betsyallenesg@yahoo.com 
Allomey for Plainriff 
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1 
NOA 
BETSY ALLEN, ESQ. 

2 Nevada State Bar #006878 
3 LAW OFFICE OF BETSY ALLEN 

P.O. Box 46991 
4 Las Vegas, Nevada 89114 
5 (702) 386-9700 

6 
Fax: (702) 386-4723 
betsyallenesq@yahoo.com 

7 Attorney for Plaintiff 

8 

9 

10 

DISTRICT COURT, FAMILY DIVISION 
CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

11 RICHARD KILGORE, ) 

Electronically Filed 
9/6/2017 4:54 PM 
Steven D. Grierson 

~~o....ci~ ....... _. 

Electronically Fil d 
Sep 14 2017 02: 2 p.m. 
Elizabeth A. Bro n 
Clerk of Suprem Court 

12 
Plaintiff, ) Case No.: D-12-459171-D 

) 
13 vs. ) 

) 

Dept No.: I 

14 
ELENI KILGORE, ) 

15 Defendant. ) 
16 ~~~~~~~~~) 

17 NOTICE OF APPEAL 

18 

19 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Plaintiff, Richard Kilgore, hereby 

20 appeals this Court's Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment filed 

21 
August 2, 2017 to the Supreme Court ofNevada. 

22 

23 AFFIRMATION: This document does not contain the social security number of 

24 any person. 

~~ 
DATED the_ \JL_ day of September, 2017. 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Nevada Bar No. 6878 

1 

JA-001559 
Docket 73977 Document 2017-31047 



NEO 
FRED PAGE, ESQ. 

2 Nevada Bar: 6080 

3 PAGE LAW OFFICE 
6145 Spring Mountain Road, Suite 201 

4 Las Vegas, Nevada 89146 
5 Phone: (702) 469-3278 

Facsimile: (702) 628-9884 
6 

E-mail: fpage@pagelawoffices.com 
7 Attorney for Defendant 

Electronically Filed 
8/21/2017 10:37 AM 
Steven D. Grierson 

~~o,.u~...._...,....,,. 

DISTRICT COURT, FAMILY DIVISION 
9 

10 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

11 
RICHARD KILGORE, 

12 

13 
Plaintiff, CASE NO.: D-12-459171-D 

DEPT. NO.: I 
14 VS. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

ELENI KILGORE, 

Defendant. 

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS 
OF LAW AND ORDER 

TO: RICHARD KILGORE, Plaintiff 

TO: BETSY ALLEN, ESQ., Attorney for Plaintiff 

YOU AND EACH OF YOU please take notice the Findings of Fact 

r Conclusions of Law, and Orders from Evidentiary Hearing and Status Chee 
_) 

26 Hearing was entered on the 211u day of August 201 7, of which a true and correct 
27 

28 
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copy is attached hereto: 

2 DA TED this 21st day of August 2017 

' .l 

4 

5 

6 

7 

9 

10 

l I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

26 

27 

28 

JA-0 561 

PAGj: L~W OFFICE 
/,,,. _., .· 

"'.-·f-·-/ 

-----~Riill PAGE, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No.: 6080 
6145 Spring Mountain Road, Suite 201 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146 
(702) 469-3278 
Attorney for Defendant 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

2 The undersigned hereby certifies that on the 21 51 day of August 2017, th 

3 

foregoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF 
4 

s LAW, AND ORDERS FROM EVIDENTIARY HEARING AND STATU 

6 
CHECK HEARING was served pursuant to NRCP 5(b) by placing a true an 

7 

8 correct copy in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the following: 

9 Betsy Allen, Esq. 
10 P.O. Box 46991 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89 l 14 
Attorney for ~Jai'ff 

11 

12 

13 
~-·· 

14 An employee of Page Law Office 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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